
* * * AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE * * *
Please contact the City Recorder's Office, Roseburg City Hall, 900 SE Douglas, Roseburg, OR 97470-3397 
(Phone 541-492-6866) at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time if you need an accommodation. 

TDD users please call Oregon Telecommunications Relay Service at 1-800-735-2900. 

ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – JULY 14, 2025 
City Council Chambers, City Hall 
900 SE Douglas Avenue, Roseburg, Oregon 97470 

Public Online Access:  
City website at https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos 
Facebook Live at www.Facebook.com/CityofRoseburg 

See Audience Participation Information for instructions on how to participate in meetings. 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 

1. Call to Order – Mayor Larry Rich

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call
Tom Michalek Andrea Zielinski Jason Tate 
Ruth Smith Ellen Porter  Katie Williams 
Zack Weiss Shelley Briggs Loosley 

3. Mayor Reports

4. Commission Reports/Council Ward Reports

5. Audience Participation – In Person or via Zoom/See Information on the Reverse

6. Consent Agenda
A. June 23, 2025 Special Meeting Minutes
B. June 23, 2025 Meeting Minutes
C. OLCC – New Outlet – T&K Christners Enterprises Inc. dba Shazaams 1 located at

2421 W. Harvard Ave.
D. OLCC – New Outlet – Mesa5 Inc dba Umpqua Valley Liquor Outlet located at 1350

NE Stephens St. #26

7. Public Hearings
A. Community Development Block Grant Regional Housing Rehabilitation Project
B. RMC Section 12.04.090 Proposed Floodplain Overlay Text Amendments File No.

LUDR-25-001

8. Ordinances

A. Ordinance No. 3613 - Amending Chapter 2.20 of the Roseburg Municipal Code, First
Reading

9. Department Items

A. Downtown Parking Committee Recommendations

B. Options for Allowing Distribution of Injectable Overdose Reversal Kits on City
Property

10. Items from Mayor, City Council and City Manager

A. Reading of Executive Session Disclaimer (ORS192.660(2)(e)

11. Adjourn

12. Executive Session ORS 192.660(2)(e)

A. Real Property Discussion

Informational 

A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos
http://www.facebook.com/CityofRoseburg


 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION INFORMATION 

The Roseburg City Council welcomes and encourages citizen participation at all of our regular meetings, with the 
exception of Executive Sessions, which, by state law, are closed to the public.  To allow Council to deal with business on 
the agenda in a timely fashion, we ask that anyone wishing to address the Council follow these simple guidelines: 

Comments may be provided in one of three ways: 

• IN PERSON during the meeting in the Council Chambers, Roseburg City Hall, 900 SE Douglas Ave. 

o Each speaker must provide their name, address, phone number and topic on the Audience Participation 

Sign-In Sheet.  

• VIA EMAIL by sending an email by 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to info@roseburgor.gov.  

o These will be provided to the Council but will not be read out loud during the meeting.  Please include 

your name, address and phone number within the email.   

• VIRTUALLY during the meeting. Contact the City Recorder by phone (541) 492-6866 or email 

(info@roseburgor.gov) by 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to get a link to the meeting.   

o Each speaker must provide their name, address, phone number and topic in the email.  Speakers will 

need to log or call in prior to the start of the meeting using the link or phone number provided. When 

accessing the meeting through the ZOOM link, click “Join Webinar” to join the meeting as an attendee.  

All attendees will be held in a “waiting room” until called on to speak.  It is helpful if the speaker can 

provide a summary of their comments via email to ensure technology/sound challenges do not limit 

Council’s understanding.   

• Anyone wishing to speak regarding an item on the agenda may do so when Council addresses that item.   

• Anyone wishing to speak regarding an item on the Consent Agenda, or on a matter not on the evening’s 
agenda, may do so under “Audience Participation.”   

1. Speakers will be called by the Mayor in the order in which they signed up.  The Mayor will generally call in-
person speakers prior to calling speakers participating via Zoom.   Each virtual speaker will be transferred 
from the “waiting room” into the meeting to provide comments, then moved back to the “waiting room” upon 
completion of their comments.   

2. Persons addressing the Council in person or virtually must state their name and city of residence for the 
record.   

 
TIME LIMITATIONS - A total of 30 minutes shall be allocated for the “Audience Participation” portion of 
the meeting.  With the exception of public hearings, each speaker will be allotted a total of 6 minutes, unless the 
number of speakers will exceed the maximum time.  In this case, the Mayor may choose to decrease the allotted 
time for each speaker in order to hear from a wider audience.  All testimony given shall be new and not have been 
previously presented to Council. 
 
Audience Participation is a time for the Mayor and Council to receive input from the public. The Council 
may respond to audience comments after “Audience Participation” has been closed or during “Items from 
Mayor, Councilors or City Manager” after completion of the Council’s business agenda.  The Council 
reserves the right to delay any action requested until they are fully informed on the matter. 

 
ORDER AND DECORUM 
Councilors and citizens shall maintain order and decorum at Council meetings.  Any audience member may be 
directed to leave the meeting if they use unreasonably loud, disruptive, or threatening language, make loud or 
disruptive noise, engage in violent or distracting action, willfully damage furnishings, refuse to obey the rules of 
conduct, or refuse to obey an order of the Mayor or majority of Council.  No signs, posters or placards are allowed 
in the meeting room. 
 
All speakers and audience members should treat everyone with respect and maintain a welcoming environment.  
Please avoid actions that could be distracting such as cheering, booing, or applause.  Please turn cell phones to 
silent and enter and exit the Council Chambers quietly if the meeting is in progress and take any conversations 
outside the Chambers.   
 

The City Council meetings are on Facebook Live and available to view on the City website the next day at:  
https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos 

 
The full agenda packet is available on the City’s website at:  

https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-agendas 

https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos
https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-agendas


June 23, 2025 City Council Special Meeting Minutes 1

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

June 23, 2025 

Mayor Larry Rich called the Special Meeting of the Roseburg City Council to order at 6:30 
p.m. on June 23, 2025 in the City Hall Council Chambers, 900 SE Douglas Avenue,
Roseburg, Oregon.

2. ROLL CALL
Present: Mayor Larry Rich, Councilors Briggs Loosley, Tom Michalek, Ellen Porter 

(via Zoom), Jason Tate, Zack Weiss, Katie Williams, and Andrea 
Zielinski  

Absent: Ruth Smith 
Others: City Manager Nikki Messenger, City Attorney Jim Forrester, Police Chief 

Gary Klopfenstein, Fire Chief Tyler Christopherson, Community 
Development Director Stuart Cowie, Human Resource Director John 
VanWinkle, Library Director Kris Wiley, Public Works Director Ryan 
Herinckx, Finance Director Ron Harker, City Recorder Amy Nytes, and 
Management Assistant Grace Jelks 

3. Planning Commission Candidate Interviews
A. David Bolhuis appeared at 6:31 p.m., gave an overview of his qualifications,

and answered the Council’s questions.
B. Andy Stoner appeared at 6:46 p.m., gave an overview of his qualifications, and

answered the Council’s questions.

The Council expressed appreciation to both candidates for applying for the vacant 
position and participating in the interview process. The candidates were informed that 
the Council would make its decision during the upcoming regular meeting and were 
encouraged to stay for the discussion and vote. 

4. ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Rich adjourned the special meeting at 6:55 p.m.

Grace Jelks  
Management Staff Assistant 

CONSENT AGENDA A 
07/14/2025



June 23, 2025, City Council Minutes 1 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

June 23, 2025 

Mayor Rich called the regular meeting of the Roseburg City Council to order at 7:01 p.m. on 
June 23, 2025, in the City Hall Council Chambers, 900 SE Douglas Avenue, Roseburg, 
Oregon.   

1. Pledge of Allegiance
Councilor Zielinski led the pledge of allegiance.

2. ROLL CALL
Present: Mayor Larry Rich, Councilors Shelley Briggs Loosley, Tom Michalek, Ellen 

Porter (via Zoom), Jason Tate, Katie Williams, Zack Weiss, and Andrea 
Zielinski 

Absent: Ruth Smith 
Others: City Manager Nikki Messenger, City Attorney Jim Forrester, Police Chief 

Gary Klopfenstein, Fire Chief Tyler Christopherson, Community 
Development Director Stu Cowie, Human Resources Director John 
VanWinkle, Library Director Kris Wiley, Public Works Director Ryan 
Herinckx, Finance Director Ron Harker, City Recorder Amy Nytes, 
Management Assistant Grace Jelks, Parks and Recreation Program 
Manager Velorie Ligon, and The New Review Reporter Patrick Moore 

3. Mayor Reports
A. Council presented the Planning Commissioner Appointment.  Discussion ensued.

The Council held candidate interviews for one Planning Commissioner vacancy
during the Special Meeting.  Council expressed appreciation to all the candidates
who applied and interviewed for the vacant Planning Commission position.
Councilors Michalek and Porter expressed concerns about appointing too many
Commissioners with a background in real estate.
Cowie clarified there is a two-person limit on the number of realtors, developers,
or contractors that can serve the Commission at the same time, and we have
experienced difficulties in filling vacancies on many Commissions.
Forrester clarified that current legislation states there cannot be more than two
people with same occupation, business, or trade serving on the Commission at
the same time.
Councilor Weiss moved to appoint David Bolhuis to fill one Planning Commission
vacancy.  The motion was seconded by Councilor Briggs Loosley and approved
with the following vote: Councilors Briggs Loosley, Tate, Weiss, and Williams.
Councilors Michalek, Porter, and Zielinski voted no.  The motion passed (4-3).

CONSENT AGENDA B 
07/14/2025



June 23, 2025, City Council Minutes 2 

Consensus to appoint David Bolhuis to the Planning Commission for a term 
expiring on December 31, 2028. 

B. Mayor Rich proclaimed July 2025 as Parks & Recreation Month.  Ligon accepted
the proclamation and thanked the Council for their recognition.

4. Commission Reports/Council Ward Reports
Councilor Briggs Loosley spoke about the June 23, 2025 Homeless Commission
meeting.
Councilor Porter spoke about the June 12, 2025 Public Works Commission meeting.
A. Councilor Weiss presented the Downtown Parking Committee update. He stated

that the Committee held their last meeting on June 19, 2025 and they are putting
together recommendations to be presented at the July 14th Council meeting.
Mayor Rich asked that material be provided with enough time for Council to
adequately review it before the scheduled Council presentation and Cowie
confirmed he would work on finalizing the report to send out.

5. Audience Participation
Kelly Wyatt, resident, spoke about proposed parking permit increases in Laurelwood.
Councilor Porter shared concerns about parking enforcement in the Laurelwood area,
our needs are not the same as the Downtown area, 700% increase is too much for
permit parking, and lack of addressing concerns about high schoolers parking in the
neighborhood.

6. Consent Agenda
A. June 9, 2025, Regular Meeting Minutes.

Councilor Zielinksi moved to approve the consent agenda.  The motion was
seconded by Councilor Williams and approved with following vote: Councilors
Briggs Loosley, Michalek, Porter, Tate, Weiss, Williams, and Zielinski voted yes.
No Councilors voted no.  The motion passed unanimously.

8. Ordinances
A. Klopfenstein presented Ordinance No. 3611 – Adding RMC 7.02.040 Indecent

Exposure, Second Reading.
Nytes read Ordinance No. 3610, entitled, “An Ordinance Adding Section
7.02.190 to the Roseburg Municipal Code,” for the second time.
Councilor Zielinski moved to adopt Ordinance No. 3611.  The motion was
seconded by Councilor Michalek.  Roll call vote was taken: Councilors Briggs
Loosley, Michalek, Porter, Tate, Weiss, Williams, and Zielinski voted yes.  No
Councilor voted no.  The motion passed unanimously.

CONSENT AGENDA B 
07/14/2025



June 23, 2025, City Council Minutes  3 
 

9. Department Items 
A. Herinckx presented 2025 Pavement Management Slurry Seals Bid Award 

Recommendation – 25PW02.  Discussion ensued. 
Councilor Porter’s comments and questions included that this item was heard by 
the Public Works Commission and unanimously supported. 
Councilor Porter moved to award the 2025 Pavement Management Slurry Seals 
to the lowest responsible bidder, Doolittle Construction, LLC for $207,000.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilor Michalek and approved with following vote: 
Councilors Briggs Loosley, Michalek, Porter, Tate, Weiss, Williams, and Zielinski 
voted yes.  No Councilors voted no.  The motion passed unanimously. 

B. Herinckx presented the 2025 Garden Valley Boulevard & Stewart Parkway 
Pavement and Curb Ramp Improvements Bid Award Recommendation – 
25PW01.   
Herinckx clarified the concrete ADA ramp work will occur during the daytime and 
paving will happen at night. 
Councilor Porter moved to award the 2025 Garden Valley Boulevard & Stewart 
Parkway Pavement and Curb Ramp Improvements Project to the lowest 
responsible bidder, Guido Construction, Inc., for $1,450,963.30.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Zielinski and approved with following vote: Councilors 
Briggs Loosley, Michalek, Porter, Tate, Weiss, Williams, and Zielinski voted yes.  
No Councilors voted no.  The motion passed unanimously. 

C. Herinckx presented Harvard Avenue Storm Improvements, Ballf to Umpqua Bid 
Award Recommendation.  Discussion ensued. 
Councilor Michalek’s comments and questions included clarification of 
replacement requirements and materials. 
Mayor Rich’s comments and questions included clarification of lane closures on 
Harvard. 
Councilor Weiss’ comments and questions included clarification of the 7% 
contingency. 
Herinckx clarified they are using 12-inch pipe for the replacements, pipes were 
installed in that area during the 1950’s, we were unable to coordinate this project 
with RUSA due to a delay with their project in the same area, the replacement 
will match the westbound lefthand lane alignment, traffic will diverted into the 
median, work will happen in both righthand lanes from 7:00 p.m. – 6:00 a.m., 
provisions that no work will happen during the Graffiti events, some side streets 
will be impacted, Umpqua Street doesn’t have a secondary access, so that 
intersection could be challenging, and the contingency was reduced because we 
are comfortable that we will not have issues with other utilities due to the 
alignment. 
Councilor Porter moved to award the Harvard Avenue Storm Improvements, Ballf 
to Umpqua to the lowest responsible bidder, Black Pearl Paving & Excavation, 
for $484,427.00.  The motion was seconded by Councilor Briggs Loosley and 
approved with following vote: Councilors Briggs Loosley, Michalek, Porter, Tate, 

CONSENT AGENDA B 
07/14/2025



June 23, 2025, City Council Minutes  4 
 

Weiss, Williams, and Zielinski voted yes.  No Councilors voted no.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 

D. Klopfenstein presented Axon AI Era Contract.  Discussion ensued. 
Councilor Weiss’ comments and questions included plans for staff training to 
improve AI efficiency.  
Councilor Porter’s comments and questions included concern about the use of 
AI, accurately capturing information recorded while there are conversations or 
noise in the background, length of time this has been available, concern about 
disputes arising from AI generated reports versus traditionally written reports, 
whether the original audio recordings are kept in case something is disputed, 
impact for Homeless Liaison Officer Chavez because he writes a lot of reports, 
and funding sources if staffing levels suddenly increase. 
Councilor Zielinski’s comments and questions included clarification of 
safeguards, continuing to use note taking methods, and backup plan for possible 
bodycam issues or failure.  
Councilor Tate’s comments and questions included whether officers have the 
ability to dictate reports rather than use the AI generated report feature. 
Mayor Rich’s comments and questions included clarification of AI using facts or 
verbatim conversations to generate reports and weeding out small talk. 
Councilor Michalek’s comments and questions included clarification of the cost 
and whether upcoming add-on features are part of the overall cost. 
Klopfenstein clarified this is closed AI that is only learning within the perimeters 
that we have given, learning tips and tricks from each other as we use it is 
helpful, Axon is very responsive to our suggestions for improvements, it does a 
very good job of weeding out ambient and background noise, this tool has been 
in beta testing for a long time and available for implementation for a few months, 
AI generated reports have not been disputed so far, traditional reports are also a 
recall of the events captured during bodycam recordings, audio / video captures 
verbatim conversations, original recordings are kept during the adjudication of 
the case and per the retention period, Officer Chavez potentially posts 100 
camps and creates that many reports, he is very excited about using this tool for 
reducing the amount of time it takes to write out reports, we would need to find 
other funding sources if we suddenly increase our staffing, most of us still use 
handwritten notes, our policy is to have the camera on, operational cameras 
make a beeping sound, officers are used to having the bodycams and report 
issues right away before going out in the field, there is a dictation feature, officers 
will be able to use the translation feature in real time beginning August 1st, AI 
uses a combination of facts and statements to generate reports, users can select 
the amount of detail they want generated in a report using a predetermined word 
count feature, longer videos or homicide cases will require officers to manually 
input more detail, this tool will help officers by getting 90% of case reports done, 
officers will review reports and make edits or add detail before their shift is over, 
upgrades are part of the package, and the overall cost is divided up into four 
payments.  

CONSENT AGENDA B 
07/14/2025



June 23, 2025, City Council Minutes  5 
 

Messenger reported that Captain Sanders confirmed that a witness statement, 
originally provided in Spanish, was accurately translated using the Axon 
translation feature, and there are four annual payments. 
Forrester clarified we already have an Axon contract, this will be an add-on to the 
existing contract, we are four months into the four-year contract, and the 
payments are divided into four annual payments. 
Councilor Zielinski moved to authorize the city manager to execute an agreement 
with Axon for a 44-Month AI Era Contract for $275,101.25.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Briggs Loosley and approved with following vote: 
Councilors Briggs Loosley, Michalek, Porter, Tate, Weiss, Williams, and Zielinski 
voted yes.  No Councilors voted no.  The motion passed unanimously. 

E. Nytes presented Resolution No. 2025-10 Updated City Fee Schedule – Solid 
Waste Management License Fees.  Discussion ensued. 
Councilor Michalek’s comments and questions included clarification of the 
reasoning behind Roseburg Disposal increasing their own fee and whether it will 
discourage new disposal companies from coming here.  
Councilor Porter’s comments and questions included whether the company will 
eventually increase customer fees, possibility of adopting an ordinance that 
would limit contracts, and fee increases and following the County’s lead on a 
permit process that would potentially save customers money.   
Mayor Rich’s comments and questions included whether there are other potential 
service providers coming to the area, support for more information about the 
history of the franchise agreement, and clarification of the deadline for paying the 
current fees.   
Councilor Weiss’ comments and questions included support for more information, 
the number of licenses sold in the last few years, and the license fee is 
potentially a barrier for unauthorized solid waste disposal. 
Nytes clarified that Roseburg Disposal is asking to increase their own fee 
because it is more equitable since they have more customers inside our city 
limits, new disposal companies need to meet the same standards they have to 
meet, new legislation regarding recycling requirements, investing in the 
community, they are not proposing to increase customer fees at this time, they 
may ask Council to increase customer fees in the future, and this is based on the 
code we have in existence now. 
Messenger clarified we occasionally receive notifications about individuals or 
small businesses making contact with customers or putting signs out for junk 
removal, this is not allowed per our municipal code, hauling solid waste requires 
a solid waste license in our city, we are verifying the service is legitimate and the 
material is being disposed of properly, Roseburg Disposal is working to 
implement requirements of the recent Recycling Modernization Act with the help 
of grant funding, we are working with the County on an extension for Roseburg 
Disposal due to a shipment delay for new trucks that were ordered, there are 
companies that the DEQ is working with, we can do some research and bring 
back more information to Council, we have not sold many licenses, unauthorized 
solid waste removal is continuing to show up in the landfill, the license fee is 

CONSENT AGENDA B 
07/14/2025



June 23, 2025, City Council Minutes  6 
 

appropriate to off-set street damage by the trucks, will get more information 
about limiting us to one service provider like the current County policy, there 
have been issues with outside service providers coming into town and hauling off 
solid waste to other landfills, and the current fee is due this July.  
Forrester clarified we have not historically had just one franchise and we can 
bring back more information. 
Councilor Porter moved to direct staff to research and bring information about 
Solid Waste Management Franchises to the next Council meeting.  The motion 
was seconded by Councilor Weiss and approved with following vote: Councilors 
Briggs Loosley, Michalek, Porter, Tate, Weiss, Williams, and Zielinski voted yes.  
No Councilors voted no.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

10. Items from Mayor, City Council, and City Manager 
• Councilor Porter asked for a status update on the investigation, report, and 

conversation with the CIS legal representative.  Forrester confirmed that he has 
the report, the Mayor also received the verbal report from the investigator, has 
not released it, and needs to speak with the attorney again before he sends 
Council an email with updates. 

• Councilor Michalek asked for clarification on parliamentary rules pertaining to the 
Chair’s ability to give their opinion on matters presented for discussion in 
Commission meetings.  Forrester clarified that you cannot offer an opinion before 
the public has a chance to make comments when you are acting as the decision 
maker during Council meetings and quasi-judicial matters.  Messenger clarified 
that you are able to offer an opinion and vote as Chair of a Commission.  Nytes 
confirmed there is a summary of parliamentary procedures in the Council 
orientation packets and is working on facilitating more training locally. 

• Councilor Weiss asked for the status of getting more information about adding a 
permit process for distribution of injectable Naloxone for emergencies in public 
spaces and discussing it at the next Council meeting.  Messenger stated that 
staff will bring back more information upon clear direction from Council. 
Councilor Weiss moved to direct staff to research and bring back information 
about a permit process for distribution of injectable Naloxone on city property to 
the next Council meeting.  The motion was seconded by Councilor Williams and 
approved with a consensus of the Council. 

 
11. Adjourn 

Mayor Rich adjourned the regular meeting at 9:03 p.m. 
 
 
Grace Jelks  
Management Staff Assistant 

CONSENT AGENDA B 
07/14/2025



ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

OLCC NEW LICENSE 
T&K CHRISTNERS ENTERPRISES INC DBA SHAZAAMS 1 

2421 W. HARVARD AVE.

Meeting Date: July 14, 2025           Agenda Section: Consent 
Department: Administration     Staff Contact: Grace Jelks, Management Assistant  
www.cityofroseburg.org     Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6866 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
OLCC has received an application from T&K Christners Enterprises Inc dba Shazaams 
1, as a new license granted for “New License” – Limited On-Premises Sales & 
Consumption”. Roseburg Municipal Code Chapter 9.12 requires staff review of all 
applications submitted to the Oregon Liquor and Cannabis Commission (OLCC) for a 
license to sell alcoholic beverages within the City. Upon completion of staff review, the 
City Recorder is required to submit the application and a recommendation concerning 
endorsement to the Council for its consideration. Changes to existing licenses must be 
processed in the same manner. 

BACKGROUND 

A. Council Action History.
Chapter 9.12 requires Council to make a recommendation to OLCC on the
approval or denial of all liquor license applications submitted by any establishment
located inside City limits.

B. Analysis.
The Police Department conducted a background investigation on the applicant and
found no reason to deny the application.

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.
The applicant has paid the appropriate fee for City review of the application.

D. Timing Considerations.
The applicant is requesting endorsement from the Council for immediate submittal
to OLCC.

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
Council may recommend OLCC approval of the application as submitted, no 
recommendation, or recommend denial based on OLCC criteria. 

CONSENT AGENDA C 
07/14/2025



STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council approval of the application as submitted. 

SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I MOVE TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE OLCC NEW LICENSE 
APPLICATION FOR T&K CHRISTNERS ENTERPRISES INC DBA SHAZAAMS 1 
LOCATED AT 2421 W HARVARD AVENUE, IN ROSEBURG, OREGON.” 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment #1 – Subject Application 

Cc: License Applicant with copy of agenda 
Jonathan Crowl, OLCC Representative 

CONSENT AGENDA C 
07/14/2025



CONSENT AGENDA C 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1



CONSENT AGENDA C 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1



ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

OLCC NEW LICENSE 
MESA5 INC DBA UMPQUA VALLEY LIQUOR OUTLET 

1350 NE STEPHENS ST. #26

Meeting Date: July 14, 2025           Agenda Section: Consent 
Department: Administration     Staff Contact: Grace Jelks, Management Assistant  
www.cityofroseburg.org     Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6866 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
OLCC has received an application from Mesa5 Inc dba Umpqua Valley Liquor Outlet, as 
a new license for “New License” – Retail Off-Premises” sales. Roseburg Municipal Code 
Chapter 9.12 requires staff review of all applications submitted to the Oregon Liquor and 
Cannabis Commission (OLCC) for a license to sell alcoholic beverages within the City. 
Upon completion of staff review, the City Recorder is required to submit the application 
and a recommendation concerning endorsement to the Council for its consideration. 
Changes to existing licenses must be processed in the same manner. 

BACKGROUND 

A. Council Action History.
Chapter 9.12 requires Council to make a recommendation to OLCC on the
approval or denial of all liquor license applications submitted by any establishment
located inside City limits.

B. Analysis.
The Police Department conducted a background investigation on the applicant and
found no reason to deny the application.

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.
The applicant has paid the appropriate fee for City review of the application.

D. Timing Considerations.
The applicant is requesting endorsement from the Council for immediate submittal
to OLCC.

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
Council may recommend OLCC approval of the application as submitted, make no 
recommendation, or recommend denial based on OLCC criteria. 

CONSENT AGENDA D 
07/14/2025



STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council approval of the application as submitted. 

SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I MOVE TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE OLCC NEW LICENSE 
APPLICATION FOR MESA5 INC DBA UMPQUA VALLEY LIQUOR OUTLET 
LOCATED AT 1350 NE STEPEHENS ST #26, IN ROSEBURG, OREGON.” 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment #1 – Subject Application 

Cc: License Applicant with copy of agenda 
Jonathan Crowl, OLCC Representative 

CONSENT AGENDA D 
07/14/2025



CONSENT AGENDA D 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1



CONSENT AGENDA D 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1



ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT  
REGIONAL HOUSING REHABILITATION PROJECT 

Meeting Date: July 14, 2025 Agenda Section: Public Hearing 
Department: Community Development      Staff Contact: Stuart Cowie 
www.cityofroseburg.org Telephone Number: 541-492-6750 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
The City of Roseburg is eligible to apply for a 2025 Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) from Business Oregon to help fund a regional housing rehabilitation project for 
low- and moderate-income homeowners within the City of Roseburg. Staff is seeking the 
Council’s approval to partner with NeighborWorks Umpqua (NWU) to submit an 
application for $500,000. If awarded the grant, qualified local residents within the city 
limits would have the ability to make necessary home restoration/repairs through licensed 
contractors. This project aligns with previous City Council goals to enhance housing, 
community development, and livability. 

BACKGROUND 

A. Council Action History.
2018 – The City was awarded a $400,000 CDBG grant for a housing rehabilitation project
partnering with NWU.

2022 – The City was awarded a $500,000 CDBG grant for a housing rehabilitation project 
partnering with NWU. 

B. Analysis.
Community Development Block Grant funds come from the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development. The grants can be used for housing improvements for
homeowners with low and moderate incomes.

The City proposes to partner with NeighborWorks Umpqua (NWU) in order to run the 
program. NWU will act as the subgrantee within the grant process. NWU will be 
responsible for writing the grant application, determining qualifying homeowners and 
potential rehabilitation projects, lining up contractors to complete work, and allocating 
money to cover the costs of each project. NWU is authorized by the State to carry out 
housing rehabilitation activities on behalf of the City. Although NWU will operate the 
housing rehabilitation program, ultimately the City will be responsible for all aspects of the 
CDBG project as the grant funding will be awarded to the City. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS A 
07/14/2025



The City successfully partnered with NWU in 2018 and in 2022, utilizing this same 
program in which the City was awarded CDBG funding to assist in housing rehabilitation 
efforts.  

Unlike with previous CDBG housing rehabilitation grants where Roseburg has been the 
lead applicant but also partnered with Douglas County, Winston, and Myrtle Creek in 
order to help provide funding within those jurisdictions, this funding will be used 
specifically for property owners within the city limits of Roseburg.  

It is estimated the proposed project will benefit at least 20 households, all of whom will be 
low or moderate income. No activities are likely to displace residents; this program will 
help citizens remain in their homes.  

Projects include the following types of repairs: 

• Roofs
• Bathrooms
• Steps, ramps, decking
• Door replacements
• Window replacements
• Minor plumbing
• Minor electrical

If awarded funding again, it is anticipated that these same types of home repairs will occur 
for qualifying citizens within the city limits. The purpose of the public hearing regarding 
this matter is for Council to obtain citizens’ views about the project and to respond to 
comments about the grant.  

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.
This program has no matching fund requirement. Other than staff time needed to monitor
the grant, no City funds would be used for this application.

D. Timing Considerations.
Council approval at this meeting allows City staff and NWU to continue forward with the
CDBG application process.

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
1. Adopt Resolution No. 2025-11 and direct Staff to proceed with the application for

CBDG funds; or
2. Take no action.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council adopt Resolution No. 2025-11 and authorize submittal of an 
application with NWU for CDBG funds involving Business Oregon’s Regional Housing 
Rehabilitation Program. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS A 
07/14/2025



SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I MOVE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2025-11 AND DIRECT STAFF TO MOVE 
FORWARD WITH THE CDBG APPLICATION PROCESS INVOLVING BUSINESS 
OREGON’S REGIONAL HOUSING REHABILITATION PROGRAM.” 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment #1 – Legal Notice 
Attachment #2 – Resolution 2025-11 

PUBLIC HEARINGS A 
07/14/2025



PUBLIC HEARINGS A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1



PUBLIC HEARINGS A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-11 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN APPLICATION FOR COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS FOR BUSINESS OREGON’S 

REGIONAL HOUSING REHABILITATION PROGRAM. 

WHEREAS, the City of Roseburg is eligible to apply for a 2025 Community Development 
Block Grant from Business Oregon for funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development to be used for housing improvements, primarily for persons with low 
to moderate incomes; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Roseburg is qualified to submit an application for $500,000 in 
grant funds for a regional housing rehabilitation program for persons residing within the 
City of Roseburg; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to participate in this grant program to the greatest extent 
possible and is willing to sub-grant said grant funds to NeighborWorks Umpqua, a certified 
non-profit organization authorized by the State to carry out housing rehabilitation activities 
on behalf of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on July 14, 2025, to hear comments 
regarding the City's intent to apply for said grant funds for housing needs of low- and 
moderate-income persons in the community; and 

WHEREAS, the regional housing rehabilitation program promotes decent affordable 
housing and directly aligns with Roseburg City Council's goal to enhance housing, 
community development, and livability. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ROSEBURG THAT: 

Section 1. Authorization is hereby granted to apply for a 2025 Community 
Development Block Grant for funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development for Business Oregon's Regional Housing Rehabilitation Program.  

Section 2. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption by the 
Roseburg City Council. 

ADOPTED BY THE ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL AT ITS REGULAR MEETING 
ON THE 14TH DAY OF JULY, 2025.

_________________________________________ 
Amy Nytes, City Recorder 

PUBLIC HEARINGS A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Resolution No. 2025-11 Page 1 of 1



ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

RMC SECTION 12.04.090 PROPOSED FLOODPLAIN OVERLAY TEXT 
AMENDMENTS 

FILE NO. LUDR-25-001 

Meeting Date: July 14, 2025 Agenda Section: Public Hearing 
Department: Community Development      Staff Contact: Stuart Cowie 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6750 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
Staff is presenting Council with a proposed amendment to Roseburg Municipal Code 
Section 12.04.090 reflecting changes to the City’s floodplain development standards as 
required by the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA’s) Pre-
Implementation Compliance Measures (PICM) for National Flood Insurance Program 
(NFIP) participating communities. 

BACKGROUND 
A. Council Action History.
September 9, 2024 – Council was briefed on the FEMA Biological Opinion and its impact
to Roseburg development.

November 18, 2024 – Council directed staff to report to FEMA by December 1, 2024, that 
the City will move toward adopting a model ordinance that considers impacts to species 
and their habitat and requires mitigation to a no net loss standard. 

B. Analysis.
In the summer of 2024, FEMA sent an announcement about how Oregon must implement
the Endangered Species Act within the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).  FEMA
has been working on an environmental impact statement (EIS) for the NFIP
implementation plan being developed in response to a 2016 biological opinion (BiOp)
from the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS). This 2016 BiOp from NMFS found
that current floodplain regulations are impacting threatened species. As an interim
measure, FEMA is requiring cities and counties in Western Oregon to begin applying one
of three options for the new regulations in 2024 and 2025. Final and additional regulations
are expected after the EIS has been completed and final rules are adopted in 2026 and/or
2027.

Council was briefed on this issue on September 9, 2024. The Planning Commission was 
also briefed on this issue on October 7, 2024. On November 18, 2024, Council chose to 
pursue the Model Ordinance pathway for PICM. The two rejected pathways were (1) a 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
07/14/2025



prohibition on all new development in the floodplain and (2) a “permit-by-permit” approach 
with individual habitat assessments for each project. City staff provided a letter to all new 
owners of property in the regulated floodplain on November 1, 2024, informing them that 
new regulations were coming. A significant number of projects were submitted to 
“grandfather” themselves under the pre-PICM regulations just before the preliminary 
measures went into effect on December 1, 2024.  However, legal considerations involving 
the City’s ability to apply discretionary standards to the Site Review permitting process 
have prevented staff from fully applying the “permit-by-permit” approach that was to go 
into effect on December 1, 2024. 

Tracking of all permits in relation to the new standards began at the end of January 2025, 
and the new model ordinance is required by FEMA to be adopted by July 31, 2025. This 
project is to comply with and adopt the model ordinance per the FEMA timeline for PICM 
outlined with Council last year. 

New regulations require “no net loss” standards for all development of property within the 
Floodplain Overlay Zone affected by RMC 12.04.090. New regulations required by FEMA, 
include mitigation for any new developed space, pervious surface, and tree removal. 
Additional stormwater management is also triggered in some situations, and mitigation 
plantings will be required in the floodplain when there are new impacts. 

The proposed “no net loss” standards will use three measurable “proxies” for floodplain 
functions that could have adverse impacts on threatened and endangered fish species 
and their critical habitat. 

In practice, the amendments will add language requiring the following changes in the 
regulated special flood hazard area (SFHA), including the 100-year floodplain and the 
floodway: 

• No net loss of “undeveloped space.” Open grassy areas, unpaved areas, and
other undeveloped land must be maintained, or be replaced with “fish-accessible
and egress-able compensatory volume” in the same general area. Replacement
on the same site can be achieved at a 1:1 ratio, but development of mitigation off-
site or on a time delay significantly increases or doubles the area required for
mitigation, and the assistance of a qualified professional would be necessary; and

• No net loss of “pervious area.” Similar to the rules for undeveloped space,
pervious areas must be maintained or replaced in the same general area. Low-
impact development or green infrastructure, such as vegetated areas with native
plants, may help to mitigate for new impervious area but these must be designed
by a qualified professional. New stormwater management standards will apply to
any project that does not successfully mitigate for loss of pervious area, including
creating facilities with water quality treatment and retention; and

• No net loss of trees 6-inches diameter breast height (dbh) or greater. There
is a tree replacement ratio for re-planting that must be followed, including generally
planting many more new trees for larger trees being removed versus smaller trees.
Replacement trees must be native species suitable to the region. In addition, 5%

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
07/14/2025



of the new disturbed area must be planted with native plants and be retained as 
open space. 

These amendments were reviewed in conformance with RMC Section 12.10.020 – 
Legislative Action Procedures. This section of code requires consistency with the 
Roseburg Comprehensive Plan, Statewide Planning Goals, and other provisions of the 
municipal code. 

Staff are aware of and concerned about the implications that these new regulations will 
have on those wanting to develop their properties located within the floodplain. Additional 
time delays and expense will be incurred by applicants who in most situations will need 
to hire a qualified professional to develop the basic planning submittal documents as well 
as mitigation and compliance plans. In addition, it is anticipated that a significant amount 
of staff time will need to be devoted to explaining the new regulations, administering them 
and eventually enforcing them. 

Roseburg’s Planning Commission has the responsibility to act as the conduit to the City 
Council on land use matters. The Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding 
the matter on Monday, June 2, 2025. At the conclusion of the public hearing the Planning 
Commission discussed the proposed text amendments and concerns they had regarding 
what they felt was federal overreach from FEMA concerning the proposed floodplain 
regulations. The consensus from the Commission was that although the amendments 
may meet the general requirements for a legislative amendment as provided in RMC 
12.10.020, FEMA has put the City in a difficult position forcing us to choose between 
adopting a model ordinance that the Planning Commission feels is unnecessary, 
overbearing, and cost burdensome or face the possibility of being removed from the NFIP. 
The Planning Commission believes that these changes will disincentivize those trying to 
obtain appropriate permits and instead promote property owners to simply construct 
improvements without permits, creating a code enforcement problem that the City will 
then be forced to deal with. 

The Planning Commission made a motion directing staff to prepare Findings of Fact and 
Order recommending City Council deny the proposed floodplain amendments. These 
findings were presented to the Planning Commission for their review on June 16, 2025. 
The Planning Commission unanimously adopted these findings and recommend Council 
deny the proposed floodplain amendments included under file number LUDR-25-001. 
These findings are attached for your review. 

Oregonians for Floodplain Protection filed a federal lawsuit earlier this year to challenge 
these requirements. A preliminary injunction hearing was scheduled for May 29, 2025. 
That hearing was cancelled when both parties filed a joint motion for a stay. The League 
of Oregon Cities has confirmed that the parties are currently negotiating this issue as the 
current federal administration may not support these requirements.  

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
07/14/2025



C. Financial/Resource Considerations.
Implementation of the proposed floodplain amendments will be staff intensive, requiring
extensive permit-by-permit analysis. In addition, these new requirements will add
significant cost for public and private developers to provide the analysis necessary to
show no net loss to the species and their habitat.

D. Timing Considerations.
FEMA is requiring that the new model ordinance be adopted by July 31, 2025.

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
1. Adopt the Planning Commission’s Findings of Fact and Order for File No. LUDR-25-

001, and deny the proposed floodplain amendments; or
2. Direct staff to prepare findings of fact and order on behalf of the Council indicating the

proposed floodplain amendments are consistent with RMC 12.10.020, and approve
the proposed amendment; or

3. Modify the proposed action and continue the matter for further consideration; or
4. Decline to proceed with the proposed action.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council adopt the Planning Commission’s Findings of Fact and Order 
for File No. LUDR-25-001 and deny the proposed floodplain amendments. Council can 
revisit the ordinance when more information is provided.   

SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I MOVE TO ADOPT THE FINDINGS OF FACT AND ORDER APPROVED BY THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION FOR FILE NO. LUDR-25-001 AND DENY THE PROPOSED 
FLOODPLAIN AMENDMENTS.” 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment #1 - Planning Commission Findings of Fact and Order File No. LUDR-25-001 
Attachment #2 – Proposed Floodplain Amendments 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
07/14/2025



PUBLIC HEARINGS B - ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Page 1 of 8



PUBLIC HEARINGS B - ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Page 2 of 8



PUBLIC HEARINGS B - ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Page 3 of 8



PUBLIC HEARINGS B - ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Page 4 of 8



PUBLIC HEARINGS B - ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Page 5 of 8



PUBLIC HEARINGS B - ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Page 6 of 8



PUBLIC HEARINGS B - ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Page 7 of 8



PUBLIC HEARINGS B - ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Page 8 of 8



§ 12.04.090. Floodplain overlay.

A. Statutory Authorization. The Legislature of the State of Oregon has in Article IV, Section 2, and

Article XI, Section 2, of the Constitution of the State of Oregon, delegated the responsibility to local

governmental units to adopt regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general

welfare of its citizenry. The City Council has adopted this Section in accordance with such authority.

B. Impact on Public Health and Safety.

1. Flood hazard areas within City of Roseburg are subject to periodic inundation which results in

loss of life and property; health and safety hazards; disruption of commerce and governmental

services; extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection; and relief and impairment of

the tax base, all of which adversely affect the public health, safety and general welfare.

2. These flood losses are caused by the cumulative effect of obstructions in areas of special flood

hazards which increase flood heights and velocities and when inadequately anchored, damage

uses in other areas. Uses that are inadequately flood-proofed, elevated, or otherwise protected

from flood damages also contribute to the flood loss.

3. This Section seeks to avoid, to the extent possible, the long- and short-term adverse impacts

associated with the occupancy and modification of floodplains and to avoid the direct or indirect

support of floodplain development whenever there is a practicable alternative. The preferred

method for satisfying this requirement is to avoid sites in the base floodplain. If a structure must

be located in the base floodplain, this Section requires that potential harm to people and property

and to natural and beneficial floodplain values is minimized.

C. Purpose. It is the purpose of this Section to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare, and

to minimize public and private losses due to flood conditions in specific areas by provisions designed

to:

1. Protect human life and health;

2. Minimize expenditure of public money and costly flood control projects;

3. Preserve natural and beneficial floodplain functions;

4. Minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding generally undertaken at the

expense of the general public;

5. Minimize prolonged business interruptions;

6. Minimize damage to public facilities and utilities such as water and gas mains, electric,

telephone, and sewer lines, streets, and bridges located in areas of special flood hazard;

7. Help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of areas of

special flood hazard so as to minimize future flood blight areas;

8. Participate in and maintain eligibility for flood insurance and disaster relief;

9. Ensure that potential buyers are notified that property is in an area of special flood hazard; and

10. Ensure that those who occupy the areas of special flood hazard assume responsibility for their

actions.

D. Methods of Reducing Flood Losses. In order to accomplish its purposes, this Section includes methods

and provisions for:

1. Restricting or prohibiting uses which are dangerous to health, safety, and property due to water

or erosion hazards or which result in damaging increases in erosion or in flood heights or

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 1 of 22



velocities; 

2. Requiring that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities which serve uses, be protected

against flood damage at the time of initial construction;

3. Controlling the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective barriers,

which help accommodate or channel flood waters;

4. Controlling filling, grading, dredging and other development which may increase flood damage;

and

5. Preventing or regulating the construction of flood barriers which will unnaturally divert flood

waters or which may increase flood hazards in other areas;

6. Employing a standard of “no net loss” of natural and beneficial floodplain functions; and

7. Coordinating and supplementing the provisions of the state building code with local land use

and development ordinances.

E. Definitions. Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this Section shall be

interpreted so as to give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this Section the

most reasonable application. For purposes of this Section, the following are defined as follows:

"0.2-percent-annual-chance flood" means a flood which has a 0.2-percent chance of being equaled or

exceeded in any given year (also known as the "500-year" flood).

"0.2-percent-annual-chance flood elevation" means a computed elevation to which floodwater is

anticipated to rise during the 0.2-percent-annual-chance flood (also known as the "500-year" flood

elevation).

"0.2-percent-annual-chance floodplain" means an area subject to flooding by the 0.2-percent-annual- 

chance flood (also known as the "500-year" floodplain).

"1-percent-annual-chance flood" means a flood having a one chance in 100 of being equaled or

exceeded in any one-year period (also known as the "100-year" flood or "base flood").

"1-percent-annual-chance flood elevation" means a computed elevation to which floodwater is

anticipated to rise during the 1-percent-annual-chance flood (also known as the "100-year” flood

elevation or the “base” flood elevation).

"1-percent-annual-chance floodplain" means an area subject to flooding by the 1-percent-annual- 

chance flood (also known as the "100-year" floodplain or "base" floodplain).

"500-year elevation approach" means an area subject to a 0.2-percent-annual-chance flood.

“Ancillary features” means features of a development that are not directly related to the primary

purpose of the development.

"Appeal" means a request for a review of the Community Development Director's interpretation of

any provision of this Code or a request for a variance.

"Area of shallow flooding" means a designated AO or AH Zone on the Flood Insurance Rate Map

(FIRM). The base flood depths range from one to three feet; a clearly defined channel does not exist;

the path of flooding is unpredictable and indeterminate; and velocity flow may be evident. AO is

characterized as sheet flow and AH indicates ponding.

"Area of special flood hazard" means land in the floodplain within a community subject to a one

percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year.

"Base flood" means a flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given

year.

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 2 of 22



"Base flood elevation" means a computed elevation to which floodwater is anticipated to rise during 

the base flood. 

"Basement" means any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below-ground level) on all sides. 

"Below-grade crawlspace" means an enclosed area below the base flood elevation in which the interior 

grade is not more than two feet below the lowest adjacent grade and the height, measured from the 

interior grade of the crawlspace to the top of the crawlspace foundation, does not exceed four feet at 

any point. 

BFE. See "Base flood elevation." 

"Compensatory storage" means the volume of the loss of floodwater storage due to filling in the 

special flood hazard area shall be offset by providing a volume of flood storage by excavation or other 

compensatory measures at or adjacent to the development site. 

"Critical facility" means a facility for which even a slight chance of flooding might be too great. 

Critical facilities include, but are not limited to, schools, nursing homes, hospitals, police, fire and 

emergency response installations, installations which produce, use or store hazardous materials or 

hazardous waste. 

DBH or dbh.  See “Diameter breast height”. 

“Diameter breast height” means the diameter of a tree as measured at 4.5 feet above ground level. 

"Development" means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate, including but not 

limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or 

drilling operations, or storage of equipment or materials located within the area of special flood 

hazard. 

"Elevated building" means for insurance purposes, a non-basement building which has had its lowest 

elevated floor raised above ground level by foundation walls, shear walls, post, piers, pilings, or 

columns. 

"Existing manufactured home park or subdivision" means the preparation of additional sites by the 

construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed 

(including the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the 

pouring of concrete pads). 

“Fill” means placement of any materials such as soil, gravel, crushed stone, or other materials that 

change the elevation of the floodplain.  The placement of fill is considered “development”.  

“Fish accessible space” means the volumetric space available to fish to access. 

“Fish egressible space” means the volumetric space available to fish to exit or leave from. 

"Flood insurance rate map (FIRM)" means the official map on which the Federal Insurance 

Administration has delineated both the areas of special flood hazards and the risk premium zones 

applicable to the community. 

"Flood insurance study" means the official report provided by the Federal Insurance Administration 

that includes flood profiles, the Flood Boundary Floodway Map, and the water surface elevation of 

the base flood. 

"Flood" or "flooding" means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation 

of normally dry land areas from overflow of inland or tidal waters and/or unusual and rapid 

accumulation of surface runoff waters from any source. 

“Floodplain storage capacity” means the volume of floodwater that an area of floodplain can hold 

during the 1-percent annual chance flood. 

"Floodway" means the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must 

be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 3 of 22



elevation more than one foot. 

“Footprint” means the existing measurements of the structure related to the three floodplain functions 

and their proxies.  The footprint related to floodplain storage refers to the volumetric amount of 

developed space measured from the existing ground level to the BFE, and the footprint related to 

water quality refers to the area of impervious surface that the structure creates. 

“Functionally dependent use” means a use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is 

located or carried out in proximity to water.  The term only includes docking facilities, port facilities 

that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and ship 

repair facilities, but does not include long-term storage or related manufacturing facilities. 

“Green infrastructure” means the use of human-made hydrologic features to manage water and 

provide environmental and community benefits.  Green infrastructure uses management approaches 

and technologies that use, enhance, and/or mimic the natural hydrologic cycle processes of infiltration, 

evapotranspiration, and reuse.  At a large scale, it is an interconnected network of green space that 

conserves natural systems and provides assorted benefits to human populations.  At a local scale, it 

manages stormwater by infiltrating it into the ground where it is generated using vegetation or porous 

surfaces, or by capturing it for later use.  Green infrastructure practices can be used to achieve no net 

loss of pervious surface by creating infiltration of stormwater in an amount equal to or greater than 

the infiltration lost by the placement of the new impervious surface. 

“Habitat restoration activities” means activities with the sole purpose of restoring habitats that have 

only temporary impacts and long-term benefits to habitat.  Such projects cannot include ancillary 

structures such as a storage shed for maintenance equipment, must demonstrate that no rise in the BFE 

would occur as a result of the project and obtain a CLOMR and LOMR, and have obtained any other 

required permits (e.g. CWA Section 404 permit). 

“Hazard trees” means standing dead, dying or diseased trees or ones with a structural defect that makes 

it likely to fail in whole or in part and that present a potential hazard to a structure or as defined by the 

community. 

“Hydraulically equivalent elevation” means a location (e.g. a site where no net loss standards are 

implemented) that is approximately equivalent to another (e.g. the impacted site) relative to the same 

100-year water surface elevation contour or base flood elevation.  This may be estimated based on a

point that is along the same approximate line perpendicular to the direction of flow. 

"Hydraulically equivalent site" means a compensation area designed to drain freely and openly to a 

channel and located opposite or adjacent to a fill area. A site shall be designed by a registered civil 

engineer using a nationally accepted hydrologic model. 

“Hydrologically connected” means the interconnection of groundwater and surface water such that 

they constitute one water supply and use of either results in an impact to both. 

“Impervious surface” means a surface that cannot be penetrated by water and thereby prevents 

infiltration and increases the amount and rate of surface water runoff, leading to erosion of stream 

banks, degradation of habitat, and increased sediment loads in streams.  Such surfaces can accumulate 

large amounts of pollutants that are then “flushed” into local water bodies during storms and can also 

interfere with recharge of groundwater and the base flows to water bodies. 

“Low impact development” means an approach to land development (or redevelopment) that works 

with nature to manage stormwater as close to its source as possible.  It employs principles such as 

preserving and recreating natural landscape features and minimizing effective imperviousness to 

create functional and appealing site drainage that treats stormwater as a resource rather than a waste 

product.  Low impact development refers to designing and implementing practices that can be 

employed at the site level to control stormwater and help replication the predevelopment hydrology 

of the site.  Low impact development helps achieve no net loss of impervious surface by infiltrating 

stormwater in an amount equal to or greater than the infiltration lost by the placement of new 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 4 of 22



impervious surface.  Low impact development is a subset of green infrastructure. 

"Lowest floor" means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An 

unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking vehicles, building access or storage, 

in an area other than a basement area, is considered a building's lowest floor, provided that such 

enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-elevation design 

requirements of Subsection 12.04.090(DD) of this Code. 

"Manufactured home" means a structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a 

permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when connected to 

the required utilities. For floodplain management purposes the term "manufactured home" also 

includes park trailers, travel trailers, and other similar vehicles placed on a site for greater than 

180 consecutive days. For insurance purposes the term "manufactured home" does not include park 

trailers, travel trailers, and other similar vehicles. 

"Manufactured home park or subdivision" means a parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land divided into 

two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale. 

“Mean higher-high water” means the average of the higher-high water height of each tidal day 

observed over the National Tidal Datum Epoch” 

"NAVD 88" means North American Vertical Datum of 1988. 

"New construction" means structures for which the "start of construction" commenced on or after the 

effective date of this Section. 

"New manufactured home subdivision" means a manufactured home park or subdivision for which 

the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed 

(including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either the final 

site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after the effective date of adopted 

floodplain management regulations. 

“No net loss” means a standard where adverse impacts must be avoided to offset through adherence 

to certain requirements so that there is no net change in the function from the existing condition when 

a development application is submitted to the state, tribal or local jurisdiction.  The floodplain 

functions of storage, water quality and vegetation must be maintained. 

“Offsite” means mitigation occurring outside of the project area. 

“Onsite” means mitigation occurring within the project area. 

“Ordinary high water mark” means the line on the shore established by the fluctuations of water and 

indicated by physical characteristics such as a clear, natural line impressed on the bank; shelving; 

changes in the character of soil; destruction of terrestrial vegetation; the presence of litter and debris; 

or other appropriate means that consider the characteristics of the surrounding areas. 

“Pervious surface” means surfaces that allow rain and snowmelt to seep into the soil and gravel below.  

Pervious surface may also be referred to as permeable surface. 

“Qualified professional” means an appropriate subject matter expert that is defined by the community. 

“Reach” means a section of a stream or river along which similar hydrologic conditions exist, such as 

discharge, depth, area and slope.  It can also be the length of a stream or river (with varying conditions) 

between major tributaries or two stream gages, or a length of river for which the characteristics are 

well described by readings at a single stream gage. 

"Recreational vehicle" means a vehicle which is: 

1. Built on a single chassis;

2. 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 5 of 22



3. Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and

4. Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters

for recreational camping, travel, or seasonal use.

"Regulatory flood." See "1-percent-annual-chance floodplain." 

“Riparian” means of, adjacent to, or living on, the bank of a river, lake, pond, or other water body. 

“Riparian buffer zone (RBZ)” means the outer boundary of the riparian buffer zone is measures from the 

ordinary high water line of a fresh waterbody (lake; pond; ephemeral, intermittent, or perennial stream” or 

mean higher-high water line (MHHW) of a marine shoreline or tidally influenced river reach to 170 feet 

horizontally on each side of the stream or 170 feet inland from the MHHW.  The riparian buffer zone 

includes the area between these outer boundaries on each side of the stream, including the stream channel.  

Where the RBZ is larger than the special flood hazard area, the no net loss standards shall only apply to the 

area within the special flood hazard area. 

“Riparian buffer zone fringe” means the area outside of the RBZ and floodway but still within the special 

flood hazard area. 

“Silviculture” means the art and science of controlling the establishment, growth, composition, health, and 

quality of forests and woodlands. 

"Special flood hazard area." See "1-percent-annual-chance floodplain," also abbreviated as "SFHA." 

"Start of construction" means the first placement of permanent construction including substantial 

improvement of a structure (other than a mobile home) on a site such as the pouring of slabs or footings 

or any work beyond the stage of excavation. Permanent construction does not include land preparation, 

such as clearing, grading, and filling, nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways, 

nor does it include excavation for basement, footings, piers, or foundations, or the erection of temporary 

forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or 

sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not as part of the main structure. For a structure (other than a 

mobile home) without a basement or poured footings, the "start of construction" includes the first 

permanent framing or assembly of the structure or any part thereof on its piling or foundation. For 

mobile homes not within a mobile home park or mobile home subdivision, "start of construction" 

means the affixing of the mobile home to its permanent site. For mobile homes within mobile home 

parks or mobile home subdivisions, "start of construction" is the date on which the construction of 

facilities for servicing the site on which the mobile home is to be affixed (including, at a minimum, 

the construction of streets, either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads, and installation of 

utilities) is completed. 

"State Building Code" means the combined specialty codes. 

"Structure" means a walled and roofed building including a gas or liquid storage that is principally 

above ground. 

"Substantial damage" means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of 

restoring the structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed 30 percent of the market 

value of the structure before the damage occurred. 

"Substantial improvement" means any combination of repairs, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, 

or other improvement of a structure taking place during a 15-year period, the cost of which equals or 

exceeds 30 percent of the market value of the structure before the work is started. Before the damage 

occurred, this term includes structures that have incurred substantial damage, regardless of the actual 

repair work performed. For the purposes of this definition "substantial improvement" is considered to 

occur when the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor or other structural part of the building 

commences, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the structure. The term 

does not, however, include either: 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 6 of 22



1. Any project for improvement of a structure to comply with existing state or local health,

sanitary, or safety code specifications which are solely necessary to assure safe living

conditions, or

2. Any alteration of a structure listed on the National Register of Historic Places or the City

Inventory of Historic Places.

"Technical evaluation" means the application of special knowledge of the mathematical, physical, and 

engineering sciences regarding investigation, evaluation, planning, and design for the purpose of 

assuring compliance with applicable standards (i.e., photo interpretation, surveys, land forms, data 

sources, hydrological analysis, etc.). 

“Undeveloped space” means the volume of flood capacity and fish-accessible/egress-able habitat from 

the existing ground to the Base Flood Elevation that is undeveloped.  Any form of development 

including, but not limited to, the addition of fill, structures, concrete structures (vaults or tanks), 

pilings, levees and dikes, or any other development that reduces flood storage volume and fish 

accessible/egress-able habitat must achieve no net loss.  

"Variance" means a grant of relief from the requirements of this Section which permits construction 

in a manner that would otherwise be prohibited by this Section. 

F. Lands to Which this Code Applies. This Code shall apply to all areas of special flood hazards within

the jurisdiction of the City of Roseburg.

G. Basis for Establishing Areas of Special Flood Hazard. Areas of flood hazard for the Roseburg urban

area are areas designated as special flood hazard areas (A zones) or areas within a floodway.

Special flood hazard areas and floodways are identified by the Federal Insurance Administration

in scientific and engineering reports entitled "The Flood Insurance Study for Douglas County, Oregon

and Incorporated Areas," effective date February 17, 2010, with accompanying Digital Flood

Insurance Rate Maps (DFIRM) and Flood Hazard Boundary Maps and future revisions as adopted.

All of the above referenced publications, maps and orthophotos are hereby adopted by reference and

declared to be part of this Code as are future revisions as adopted. These publications, maps, and

orthophotos shall be kept on file with the Community Development Department.

These publications shall be used as the basis for determining which flood district applies to property.

The best available information for flood hazard identification as outlined in Subsection N shall be the

basis for regulation until a new FIRM is issued which incorporates the data utilized under Subsection

N of this Section. Where these publications fail to provide data sufficient to determine the applicable

flood district, the applicable flood district and base flood elevation shall be determined on the basis of

the best available information.

Areas of flood hazard shall also include any land area susceptible to inundation water from any source

where the above referenced maps have not identified any special flood areas.

H. Penalties for Noncompliance. No structure or land shall hereafter be constructed, located, extended,

converted, or altered without full compliance with the terms of this Code and other applicable

regulations. Violation of the provisions of this Code by failure to comply with any of its requirements

(including violations of conditions and safeguards established in connection with conditions) shall

constitute a misdemeanor. Any person who violates this Code or fails to comply with any of its

requirements shall upon conviction thereof be fined not more than $5,000 or imprisoned for not more

than 30 days, or both, for each violation and in addition shall pay all costs and expenses involved in

the case. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the City of Roseburg from taking such other lawful

action as is necessary to prevent or remedy any violation.

I. Abrogation and Greater Restrictions. This Code is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any

existing easements, covenants, or deed restrictions. However, where this Section and another

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 7 of 22



ordinance, state building code, easement, covenant, or deed restriction conflict or overlap, whichever 

imposes the more stringent restriction shall prevail. 

J. Interpretation. In the interpretation and application of this Code, all provisions shall be:

1. Considered as minimum requirements;

2. Liberally constructed in favor of the City Council; and,

3. Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under State statutes and rules

including the State building codes.

K. Warning and Disclaimer of Liability. The degree of flood protection required by this Code is

considered reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on technical evaluations as defined in

Subsection E of this Section. Larger floods can and will occur on rare occasions. Flood heights may

be increased by man-made or natural causes. This Code does not imply that land outside the areas of

special flood hazards or uses permitted within such areas will be free from flooding or flood damages.

This Code shall not create liability on the part of the City, any Department or employee thereof, or the

Federal Insurance Administration, for any flood damages that result from reliance on this Code or any

administrative decision lawfully made thereunder. Building in areas where flooding can occur is at

the owner's sole risk.

L. Site Plan Review. A site plan review shall be obtained before construction or development begins

within any area of special flood hazard established in Subsection FF of this Section. The Community

Development Director is appointed to administer and implement this Code by granting or denying site

plan review applications in accordance with its provisions. The review shall be for all structures

including mobile homes, as set forth in Subsection E, Definitions, and for other development including

fill and other activities, also as set forth in the Subsection E, Definitions. Application for a site plan

review shall be made on forms furnished by the Community Development Director and may include

but be limited to; plans in duplicate drawn to scale showing the nature, location, dimensions, and

elevations of the area in question; existing or proposed structures, fill, storage of materials, drainage

facilities, and the location of the foregoing. Specifically, the following information is required:

1. Elevation in relation to mean sea level NAVD 88, of the bottom of the lowest floor (including

basement) of all structures;

2. Elevation in relation to mean sea level NAVD 88 to which any structure has been flood-proofed;

3. Certification by a registered professional engineer or architect that the flood-proofing methods

for any nonresidential structure meet the flood-proofing criteria specified in Subsection BB AA

of this Section; and

4. Description of the extent to which any watercourse will be altered or relocated as a result of

proposed development.

Where elevation data is not available through the Flood Insurance Study or from another authoritative 

source (Subsection N of this Section), applications for site plan review shall be reviewed to assure 

that proposed construction will be reasonably safe from flooding. The test of reasonableness is a local 

judgment and includes use of historical data, high water marks, photographs of past flooding, etc., 

where available. Failure to elevate at least two feet above grade in these zones may result in higher 

insurance rates. 

M. Duties and Responsibilities of the Director. Duties of the Community Development Director shall

include, but not be limited to:

1. Review all development applications to determine that the requirements and conditions of this

Code have been satisfied.  This shall include, but not be limited to, determinations as to whether

the project includes a substantial improvement, watercourse alteration, and the placement of fill

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 8 of 22



or excavation. 

2. Review all development permits to determine that all necessary permits have been obtained from

those Federal, State, or local governmental agencies from which prior approval is required.

3. Review all development permits to determine if the proposed development is located in the

floodway. If located in the floodway, assure that the encroachment provisions of Subsection EE

of this Section are met.

4. Determine whether the proposed development activity complies with the no net loss standards

in 12.04.060(HH).

N. Use of Other Base Flood Data. When base flood elevation data has not been provided in accordance

with Subsection 12.04.090(G) of this Code: Basis for Establishing the Areas of Special Flood Hazard,

the Community Development Director shall obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any base flood

elevation data available from a Federal, State, or other source, in order to administer Subsection Z of

this Section: Residential Construction, and Subsection AA of this Section: Non-Residential

Construction.

O. Information to Be Obtained and Maintained.

1. Where base flood elevations data is provided through the Flood Insurance Study or required as

Subsection 12.04.090(N) of this Code obtain and record the actual elevation (in relation to

NAVD 88) of the bottom of the lowest floor (including basements and below-grade crawlspace)

of all new or substantially improved structures, and whether or not the structure contains a

basement.

2. For all new or substantially improved flood-proofed structures:

a. Verify and record the actual elevation (in relation to NAVD 88), and,

b. Maintain the flood-proofing certifications required in Subsection 0(L)(3) of this Section.

3. Documentation of how no net loss standards have been met.

4. Maintain for public inspection all records pertaining to the provisions of this Code.

P. Alteration of Watercourses.

1. Notify adjacent communities and the State coordinating agency prior to any alteration or

relocation of a watercourse, and submit evidence of such notification to the Federal Insurance

Administration.

2. Require that maintenance is provided within the altered or relocated portion of said watercourse

so that the flood carrying capacity of the watercourse is not diminished.

Q. Interpretation of Firm Boundaries. Make interpretation where needed as to exact location of the

boundaries of the areas of special flood hazards (for example, where there appears to be a conflict

between a mapped boundary and actual field conditions). The person contesting the location of the

boundary shall be given a reasonable opportunity to appeal the interpretation as provided in Subsection

R of this Section.

R. Variance Procedure.

1. The Planning Commission shall hear and decide variances from the requirements of this Section

as provided for in Subsection 12.10.010(T) of this Code.

2. The Planning Commission shall hear and decide appeals when it is alleged there is an error in

any requirement, decision, or determination made by the Community Development Director in

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 9 of 22



 

 

the enforcement or administration of this Section as provided for in Subsection 12.10.010(Q) of 

this Code. 

3. Those aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Commission, or any taxpayer, may appeal such 

decision to the City Council, as provided in Subsection 12.10.010(Y) of this Code. 

4. In passing upon such applications, the Planning Commission shall consider all technical 

valuations, all relevant factors, standards specified in other Sections of this Code, and: 

a. Danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of others; 

b. Danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage; 

c. Susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the effect of 

such damage on the individual owner; 

d. Importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the community; 

 

e. Necessity to the facility of a waterfront location, where applicable; 

f. Availability of alternative locations, for the proposed use which are not subject to flooding 

or erosion damage; 

g. Compatibility of the proposed use with existing anticipated development; 

h. Relationship of the proposed use to the Comprehensive Plan and Floodplain Management 

Program for that area; 

i. Safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles; 

j. Expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and sediment transport of the flood waters 

and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site; and, 

k. Costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions, including 

maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and 

water systems, and street and bridges, 

l. Effects of flood damage on individual property owners. 

5. Generally, the only condition under which a variance may be issued is for new construction and 

substantial improvements to be erected on a lot of one-half acre or less in size contiguous to and 

surrounded by lots with existing structures constructed below the base flood level, providing 

Subsection (R)(4) of this Section have been fully considered. As the lot size increases beyond 

the one-half acre, the technical justification required for issuing the variance increases. 

6. The Planning Commission may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as it deems 

necessary to further the purposes of this Code. 

7. The Community Development Director shall maintain the records of all appeal actions and report 

any variances to the Federal Insurance Administration upon request. 

S. Conditions for Variances. 

1. Variances shall not be issued unless it is demonstrated that the development will not result in net 

loss of the following proxies for the three floodplain functions in the special flood hazard area: 

undeveloped space, pervious surface, or trees 6 inches diameter breast height (dbh) or greater. 

2. Variances may be issued for the reconstruction, rehabilitation, or restoration of structures listed 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 10 of 22



 

 

on the National Register of Historic Places or the State Inventory of Historic Places, without 

regard to the procedures set forth in the remainder of this Section. 

3. Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in flood levels 

during the base flood discharge would result. 

4. Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum necessary, 

considering the flood hazard, to afford relief. 

5. Variances shall only be issued upon: 

a. Showing of good and sufficient cause; 

b. Determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights or 

additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, create nuisances, cause 

fraud, or victimization of the public as identified in Subsections L through R of this Section, 

or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances. 

6. Variances as interpreted in the National Flood Insurance Program are based on the general 

zoning law principle that they pertain to a physical piece of property; they are not personal in 

nature and do not pertain to the structure, its inhabitants, economic or financial circumstances.  As 

such, variances from the flood elevations should be quite rare. 

7. Variances may be issued for nonresidential buildings and structures in very limited 

circumstances to allow a lesser degree of flood-proofing than watertight or dry-flood-proofing, 

where it can be determined that such action will have low damage potential, complies with all 

other variance criteria except Subsection (R)(5) and otherwise complies with Subsections (U)(1) 

and (U)(2)(a)-(b) of this Section. 

8. Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice that the structure will 

be permitted to be built with a lowest floor elevation below the base flood elevation and that the 

cost of flood insurance will be commensurate with the increased risk resulting from the reduced 

lowest floor elevation. 

T. General Standards. In areas of flood hazards, the any relevant provisions of Subsections 

12.04.090(U) through 12.04.090(BBHH) of this Code shall apply.  In all special flood hazard areas, 

the no net loss standards of 12.04.090(HH) will apply. 

U. Anchoring. 

1. New construction and substantial improvements shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, 

or lateral movement of the structure. 

2. Manufactured homes shall be anchored to resist flotation, collapse, or lateral movement by 

providing over-the-top and frame ties to ground anchors. Specific requirements shall be that: 

a. All manufactured homes must likewise be anchored to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral 

movement, and shall be installed using methods and practices that minimize flood damage. 

Anchoring methods may include, but are not limited to the use of over-the-top or frame 

ties to ground anchors (Reference FEMA's guidebook FEMA-85 "Manufactured Home 

Installation in Flood Hazard Areas" for additional techniques). 

b. Additions to the mobile home shall be similarly anchored. 

3. Alternative methods of anchoring may involve a system designed to withstand a wind force of 

90 miles per hour or greater. Certification must be provided to the Community Development 

Director that this standard has been met. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 11 of 22



 

 

V. Construction Materials and Methods. 

1. New construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed with materials and utility 

equipment resistant to flood damage. 

2. New construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed using methods and 

practices that minimize flood damage. 

3. Electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air-conditioning equipment and other service 

facilities shall be elevated to a minimum of one foot above base flood elevation or located so as 

to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of 

flooding. 

W. Utilities. 

1. All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate 

infiltration of flood waters into the system. 

2. New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate 

infiltration of flood waters into the systems and discharge from the systems into flood waters; 

and, 

3. On site waste disposal systems shall be located to avoid impairment to them to contamination 

from them during flooding consistent with Oregon Department of Environmental Quality 

Regulations. 

a. Roseburg Urban Sanitary Authority shall be notified when development requiring an 

onsite waste disposal system is proposed in an area of flood hazard. 

b. Roseburg Urban Sanitary Authority shall be responsible for carrying out the purposes of 

enforcing this provision. 

X. Subdivision and Partitioning Proposals. 

1. Subdivision and partitioning proposals shall be consistent with the need to minimize flood 

damage.  In addition, the no net loss provisions of 12.04.090(HH) shall apply; 

2. Subdivision and partitioning proposals shall have public utilities and facilities such as sanitary 

and storm sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems located and constructed and maintained to 

minimize flood damage; 

3. Subdivision proposals shall have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood 

damage, including returning water; 

4. Partitions and subdivisions for nonresidential uses shall have the explanation "Not for residential 

use" printed on the face of the final survey map or plat. Where base flood elevation data has not 

been provided or is not available from another authoritative source, it shall be generated for 

subdivision and partition proposals and other proposed development which contain at least 50 

lots or five acres (whichever is less); 

5. No portion of any street or road surface in any subdivision shall be at an elevation less than one 

foot below the regional flood height. The road surface is that portion of a street or way available 

for vehicular traffic or where curbs are laid; the portion between curbs; 

6. 100-year flood elevation data shall be provided and shown on final partition and subdivision 

plats. Applicant must show the boundaries of the 100-year flood and floodway on the final 

subdivision plat; 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 12 of 22



 

 

7. A permanent monument shall be established and maintained on land partitioned or subdivided, 

showing the elevation in feet above mean sea level, NAVD 88. The location of such monument 

shall be shown on the final partition map or subdivision plat. 

Y. Specific Standards. In all areas of special flood hazards where base flood elevation data has been 

provided as set forth in Subsection G: Basis for Establishing Areas of Special Flood Hazard, or 

Subsection N: Use of Other Base Flood Data, the following provisions for residential and 

nonresidential construction, Subsections Z and AA of this Section and manufactured home placement, 

Subsection BB of this Section, are required. 

Z. Residential Construction. 

1. New construction and substantial improvement of any residential structure shall have the bottom 

of the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to a minimum of one foot above base flood 

elevation. 

2. Fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor that are subject to flooding are prohibited, or shall 

be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing for 

the entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting this requirement must either be certified 

by a registered professional engineer or architect or must meet or exceed the following minimum 

criteria: 

a. A minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch for 

every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided. 

b. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade. 

c. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, or other coverings or devices provided 

that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters. 

AA. Non-Residential Construction. New Construction and substantial improvement of any commercial, 

industrial, or other nonresidential structure shall either have the lowest floor, including basement, 

elevated to a minimum of one foot above base flood elevation; or, together with attendant utility and 

sanitary facilities, shall: 

1. Be flood-proofed so that below one foot above the base flood level the structure is watertight 

with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water; 

2. Have structural components capable of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and effects 

of buoyancy; 

3. Be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect that the design and methods of 

construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice for meeting provisions of this 

Section based on their development and/or review of the structural design, specifications and 

plans. Such certification shall be provided to the official as set forth in Subsection (O)(2) of this 

Section; 

4. Non-residential structures that are elevated, not flood-proofed, must meet the same standards for 

space below the lowest floor as described in Subsection (Z)(2); 

5. Applicants flood-proofing nonresidential buildings shall be notified that flood insurance 

premiums will be based on rates that are one foot below the flood-proof level (e.g., a building 

constructed to the base flood level will be rated as one foot below that level). 

BB. Manufactured Homes. All manufactured homes to be placed or substantially improved within Zone 

AE shall be elevated on a permanent foundation conforming to Subsection F such that the lowest 

longitudinal chassis beam of the manufactured home is a minimum of 18 inches above the base flood 

elevation and be securely anchored with a foundation system in accordance with the provisions of 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 13 of 22



 

 

Subsection (U)(2). Electrical and HVAC cross-over ducts shall be elevated to a minimum of one foot 

above base flood elevation. 

CC. Recreational Vehicles. Recreational vehicles placed on sites are required to either: 

1. Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days, 

2. Be fully licensed and ready for highway use, on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site 

only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices, and has no permanently attached 

additions; or 

3. Meet the requirements of Subsection 2.04.090(BB) above and the elevation and anchoring 

requirements for manufactured homes. 

DD. Below-Grade Crawlspaces. Below-grade crawlspaces are allowed subject to the following standards 

as found in FEMA Technical Bulletin 11-01, Crawlspace Construction for Buildings Located in 

Special Flood Hazard Areas, and depicted in Figure 2-6, Figure 2-7 and Figure 2-8, below. 

1. The building must be designed and adequately anchored to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral 

movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the 

effects of buoyancy. Hydrostatic loads and the effects of buoyancy can usually be addressed by 

the required openings stated in Subsection (DD)(2) below. Because of hydrodynamic loads 

crawlspace construction is not allowed in areas with flood velocities greater than five feet per 

second unless the design is reviewed by a qualified design professional, such as a registered 

architect or professional engineer. Other types of foundations are recommended for these areas. 

2. The crawlspace is an enclosed area below the base flood elevation (BFE) and, as such, must have 

openings that equalize hydrostatic pressures by allowing the automatic entry and exit of 

floodwaters. The bottom of each flood vent opening can be no more than one foot above the 

lowest adjacent exterior grade. 

3. Portions of the building below the BFE must be constructed with materials resistant to flood 

damage. This includes not only the foundation walls of the crawlspace used to elevate the 

building, but also any joists, insulation, or other materials that extend below the BFE. The 

recommended construction is to elevate the bottom of joists and all insulation one foot above 

BFE. 

4. Any building utility systems within the crawlspace must be elevated a minimum of one foot 

above BFE or designed so that floodwaters cannot enter or accumulate within the system 

components during flood conditions. Ductwork, in particular, must either be placed a minimum 

of one foot above the BFE or sealed from floodwaters. 

5. The interior grade of a crawlspace below the BFE must not be more than two feet below the 

lowest adjacent exterior grade. 

6. The height of the below-grade crawlspace, measured from the interior grade of the crawlspace 

to the top of the crawlspace foundation wall must not exceed four feet at any point. The height 

limitation is the maximum allowable unsupported wall height according to the engineering 

analyses and building code requirements for flood hazard areas. 

7. There must be an adequate drainage system that removes floodwaters from the interior area of 

the crawlspace. The enclosed area should be drained within a reasonable time after a flood event. 

The type of drainage system will vary because of the site gradient and other drainage 

characteristics, such as soil types. Possible options include natural drainage through porous, 

well-drained soils and drainage systems such as perforated pipes, drainage tiles or gravel or 

crushed stone drainage by gravity or mechanical means. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 14 of 22



 

 

8. The velocity of floodwaters at the site should not exceed five feet per second for any crawlspace. 

For velocities in excess of five feet per second, other foundation types should be used. 

9. There is a charge added to the basic policy premium for a below-grade crawlspace. 

 

 

 

(This space intentionally left blank, to keep  Figures 2-6 through 2-8 on one page)

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 15 of 22



 

 

 

FIGURE 2-6: PREFERRED CRAWLSPACE CONSTRUCTION 
 

 

 

FIGURE 2-7: BELOW-GRADE CRAWLSPACE CONSTRUCTION 
 

 

 

FIGURE 2-8: REQUIREMENTS OF BELOW-GRADE CRAWLSPACE 

CONSTRUCTION 

 

 

EE. Floodways. Located within areas of special flood hazard established in Subsection 

12.04.090(G) are areas designed as floodways. Since the floodway is an extremely hazardous 

area due to the velocity of floodwaters which carry debris, potential projectiles, and erosion 

potential, the following provisions apply: 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 16 of 22



 

 

1. Prohibit encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements, 

and other development unless certification by a registered professional civil 

engineer is provided demonstrating through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses 

performed using current nationally accepted hydrologic models meeting the minimum 

requirement of National Flood Insurance Program that encroachments shall not result in 

any increase in flood levels during the occurrence of the base flood discharge. 

2. If Subsection (EE)(1) is satisfied, all new construction and substantial improvements 

shall comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of Subsections T 

through EE. 

3. Compensatory Storage Required. Each cubic foot of fill placed within special flood 

hazard area (SFHA) requires developer to remove one and one-half cubic feet of fill 

from a hydraulically equivalent site. 

FF. Before Regulatory Floodway Designation. In areas where a regulatory floodway has not been 

designated, no new construction, substantial improvements, or other development (including 

fill) shall be permitted within Zones A1-A30 and AE on the community's FIRM, unless it is 

demonstrated that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with 

all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface elevation 

of the base flood more than one foot at any point within the community. Compensatory 

Storage Required. Each cubic foot of fill placed within SFHA requires developer to remove 

1½ cubic feet of fill from a hydraulically equivalent site. 

GG. Critical Facility. Construction of new critical facilities shall be located outside the limits of 

the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA), Zone AE (100-year floodplain) and Zone X (500-

year floodplain). Construction of new critical facilities shall be permissible within these zones 

only through the variance process. Access to and from the critical facility shall be protected 

to the height of the base flood. Flood-proofing and sealing measures must be taken to ensure 

that toxic substances will not be displaced by or released into floodwaters. Access routes 

elevated to or above the base flood elevation shall be provided to all critical facilities to the 

extent possible. 

HH. (No Net Loss) Standards for Protection of Special Flood Hazard Area Floodplain Functions.  

Adherent to the National Marine Fisheries Service 2016 Biological Opinion, mitigation is 

necessary to ensure no net loss in floodplain functions.  The Federal Emergency Management 

Agency’s 2024 Draft Oregon Implementation Plan identifies proxies that provide measurable 

actions that can prevent the no net loss of parent floodplain functions.  These proxies include 

undeveloped space, pervious surfaces, and trees to account for a no net loss in respective 

floodplain functions of floodplain storage, water quality, and vegetation.  Mitigation of these 

proxies must be completed to ensure compliance with no net loss standards.  No net loss 

applies to the net change in floodplain functions as compared to existing conditions at the 

time of proposed development and mitigation must be addressed to the floodplain function 

that is receiving detrimental impact.  The standards below apply to all special flood hazard 

areas. 

1. No Net Loss Standards 

a. No net loss of floodplain functions is allowed for development in the special flood 

hazard area, as measured by the reduction of undeveloped space, increased 

impervious surface area, or the loss of trees that are 6-inches diameter breast height 

(dbh) or greater.  No net loss can be achieved by first avoiding negative effects to 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 17 of 22



 

 

floodplain functions to the degree possible, then minimizing remaining effects, 

then replacing and/or otherwise compensating for, offsetting, or rectifying the 

residual adverse effects to undeveloped space, impervious surfaces, or trees over 

6-inches dbh.  Prior to the issuance of any development authorization, the applicant 

shall: 

i. Demonstrate a legal right by the project proponent to implement the 

proposed activities to achieve no net loss (e.g. property owner 

authorization); and 

ii. Communicate with the property owner their responsibility for the long-

term maintenance and monitoring of all mitigation and other features as 

approved by these regulations to achieve no net loss. 

b. No net loss must be provided within, in order of preference: 1) the lot or parcel that 

floodplain functions were removed from, 2) the same reach of the waterbody where 

the development is proposed, or 3) the special flood hazard area within the same 

hydrologically connected area as the proposed development.  Table 2-14-A 

presents the no net loss ratios, which increase based on the preferences listed 

above. 

2. Undeveloped Space. 

a. Development proposals shall not reduce the fish-accessible and egress-able 

undeveloped space within the special flood hazard area. 

b. A development proposal with an activity that would impact undeveloped space 

shall achieve no net loss of fish-accessible and egress-able space. 

c. Lost undeveloped space must be replaced with fish-accessible and egress-able 

compensatory volume based on the ratio in Table 2-14-A and at the same flood 

level at which the development causes an impact (i.e., plus or minus 1 foot of the 

hydraulically equivalent elevation). 

i. Hydraulically equivalent sites must be found at or within 5’ of elevation 

difference above or below the project area, and between the Ordinary 

High Water Mark and outer boundary of the 100-year floodplain;  

ii. Hydrologically connected to the waterbody that is the flooding source; 

iii. Designed so that there is no increase in velocity; and 

iv. Designed to fill and drain in a manner that minimizes anadromous fish 

stranding to the greatest extent possible. 

3. Impervious Surfaces.  Impervious surface mitigation shall be achieved through any of 

the following options: 

a. Development proposals shall not result in a net increase in impervious surface area 

within the special flood hazard area; or 

b. Use low impact development or green infrastructure to infiltrate and treat 

stormwater produced by the new impervious surface, as documented by a qualified 

professional; or 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 18 of 22



 

 

c. If prior methods are not feasible and documented by a qualified professional, 

stormwater retention is required to ensure no increase in peak volume or flow and 

to maximize infiltration, and treatment is required to minimize pollutant loading.  

See 12.04.090.HH.5 for stormwater retention specifications. 

4. Trees. 

a. Development proposals shall result in no net loss of trees 6-inches diameter breast 

height (dbh) or greater within the special flood hazard area.  This requirement does 

not apply to silviculture where there is no development. 

i. Trees of or exceeding 6-inches dbh that are removed from the riparian 

buffer zone (RBZ), floodway, or RBZ fringe must be replaced at the 

ratios in Table 2-14-A. 

ii. Replacement trees must be native species that would occur naturally in 

the the impact area. 

5. Stormwater Management.  Any development proposal that cannot mitigate for 

impervious surfaces as identified above in 12.04.090.HH.3 must include the following: 

a. Water quality (pollution reduction) treatment for post-construction stormwater 

runoff from any net increase in impervious area; and 

b. Water quality treatment (retention facilities). 

c. Retention facilities must: 

i. Limit discharge to match the pre-development peak discharge rate (i.e., 

the discharge rate of the site based on its natural groundcover and grade 

before any development occurred) for the 10-year peak flow using a 

continuous simulation for flows between 50 percent of the 2-year event 

and the 10-year flow event (annual series). 

ii. Treat stormwater to remove sediment and pollutants form impervious 

surfaces such that at least 80 percent of the suspended solids are 

removed from the stormwater prior to discharging to the receiving body. 

iii. Be certified by a qualified professional. 

d. Stormwater treatment practices for multi-parcel facilities, including subdivisions, 

shall have an enforceable operation and maintenance agreement to ensure the 

system functions as designed.  This agreement will include: 

i. Access to stormwater treatment facilities at the site by City of Roseburg 

Public Works staff for the purpose of inspection and repair. 

ii. A legally binding document specifying the parties responsible for the 

proper maintenance of the stormwater treatment facilities (typically the 

property owner).  The agreement will be recorded and bind subsequent 

purchasers and sellers even if they were not party to the original 

agreement.   

iii. For stormwater controls that include vegetation and/or soil permeability, 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 19 of 22



 

 

the operation and maintenance manual must include maintenance of 

these elements to maintain the functionality of the feature. 

iv. The party responsible for the operation and maintenance of the 

stormwater facility shall have the operation and maintenance manual on 

site and available at all times.  Records of the maintenance and repairs 

shall be retained and made available for inspection by the City of 

Roseburg for five years. 

6. Activities Exempt from No Net Loss Standards.  The following activities are not subject 

to the no net loss standards of 12.04.090.HH; however, they may not be exempt from 

City of Roseburg Site Review or other floodplain standards. 

a. Normal maintenance of structures, such as re-roofing and replacing siding, 

provided there is no change in footprint or expansion of the roof of the structure; 

b. Normal street, sidewalk, and road maintenance, including filling potholes, 

repaving, and installing signs and traffic signals, that does not alter contours, use, 

or later culverts and is less than six inches above grade.  Activities exempt do not 

include expansion of paved areas; 

c. Routine maintenance of landscaping that does not involve grading, excavation or 

filling; 

d. Routine agricultural practices such as tilling, plowing, harvesting, soil 

amendments, and ditch cleaning that does not alter the ditch configuration provided 

the spoils are removed from the special flood hazard area or tilled into fields as a 

soil amendment; 

e. Routine silviculture practices that do not meet the definition of development, 

including harvesting of trees as long as root balls are left in place and forest road 

construction or maintenance that does not alter contours, use, or alter culverts and 

is less than six inches above grade; 

f. Removal of noxious weeds and hazard trees, and replacement of non-native 

vegetation with native vegetation; 

g. Normal maintenance of above ground utilities and facilities, such as replacing 

downed power lines and utility poles provided there is no net change in footprint; 

h. Normal maintenance of a levee or other flood control facility prescribed in the 

operations and maintenance plan for the levee or flood control facility.  Normal 

maintenance does not include repair from flood damage, expansion of the prism, 

expansion of the face or toe or addition of protection on the face or toe with rock 

armor; and 

i. Habitat restoration activities. 

7. Riparian Buffer Zone (RBZ) and Beneficial Gain Standard 

a. The Riparian Buffer Zone (RBZ) is measured from the ordinary high-water line 

and extending out 170 feet horizontally on each side of the waterbody in the special 

flood hazard area.  The RBZ includes the area between these outer boundaries on 

each side of the waterbody, including the stream channel. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 20 of 22



 

 

b. Habitat restoration activities in the RBZ are considered self-mitigating and are not 

subject to the no net loss standards described above.  Invasive plants such as 

Himalayan Blackberry may be removed with hand-held equipment and such 

removal is also not subject to the no net loss standards described above. 

c. Functionally dependent uses (docks, etc.) are only subject to the no net loss 

standards for development in the RBZ.  Ancillary features that are associated with 

but do not directly impact the functionally dependent use in the RBZ (including 

storage or support buildings, restrooms, etc.) are subject to the beneficial gain 

standard in addition to no net loss standards. 

d. Beneficial Gain Standard: An area within the same reach of the project and 

equivalent to 5% of the net total of new undeveloped area or impervious surface 

within the RBZ shall be planted with native herbaceous and shrub vegetation and 

remain designated as open space.  

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 21 of 22



 

 

Table 2-14-A: NO NET LOSS STANDARDS 

BASIC 

MITIGATE 

RATIOS 

Undeveloped 

Space (ft³) 

Impervious 

Surface (ft²) 
Trees 

(6”<db

h≤20”) 

Trees 

(20”<db

h≤39”) 

Trees 

(39”<

dbh) 

RBZ and 

Floodway 

2:1* 1:1 3:1* 5:1 6:1 

RBZ Fringe 1.5:1* 1:1 2:1* 4:1 5:1 

MITIGATION 

MULTIPLIERS 
     

Mitigation 

onsite to 

Mitigation 

offsite, same 

reach 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Mitigation 

onsite to 

mitigation 

offsite, 

different reach, 

same 

watershed (5th 

field) 

200% 200% 200% 200% 200% 

Notes: 

1. * Ratios with asterisks are indicated in the NMFS Biological Opinion. 

2. Mitigation multipliers of 100% result in the required mitigation occurring at the same value described in the 

ratios above, while multipliers of 200% result in the required mitigation being doubled. 

a. For example, if only 500 ft² of the total 1000 ft² of required pervious surface mitigation can be 

conducted onsite and in the same reach, the remaining 500 ft² of required pervious surface mitigation 

occurring offsite at a different reach would double because of the 200% multiplier. 

3. RBZ impacts must be offset in the RBZ, onsite or offsite. 

4. Additional standards may apply in the RBZ (see 12.04.090(HH)(7). 

 
(Ord. 3514, § 5, 11-26-2018) 
(Insert new Ordinance and Adoption Date Here) 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS B 
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Page 22 of 22



ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

ORDINANCE NO. 3613 
 AMENDING CHAPTER 2.20 OF THE ROSEBURG MUNICIPAL CODE 

Meeting Date:  July 14, 2025 Agenda Section: Ordinances 
Department: Administration      Staff Contact:  Amy Nytes, City Recorder 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6866 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
The Homeless Commission is recommending an amendment to the Roseburg Municipal 
Code (RMC) to reduce the frequency of their meetings.  If the Council agrees, RMC 
Section 2.20.040 will need to be amended by ordinance to specify that the Commission 
will meet every even-numbered month beginning February each year, unless meetings 
are formally cancelled.  

BACKGROUND 

A. Council Action History.
On February 22, 2021, the Council approved similar amendments for the Airport
Commission and Economic Development Commissions, modifying their meeting
schedules and addressing other minor housekeeping revisions.   The Homeless
Commission has recommended a change following discussion at its June 23, 2025,
meeting.

On May 13, 2024, the Council discussed the future and focus of the Homeless 
Commission. No changes to the Commission were made following the discussion. 

B. Analysis.
Currently, the RMC requires the Homeless Commission to meet monthly unless
cancelled.  Commissioners have expressed that a bi-monthly meeting schedule is more
appropriate given the current volume of agenda items.  The proposed amendment to
RMC 2.20.040 would establish that the Commission shall meet every even-numbered
month, unless the meeting is formally cancelled.  This change aligns the Homeless
Commission’s schedule more closely with other advisory bodies while retaining flexibility
for special meetings if needed.

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.
There are no financial or resource considerations related to this code amendment.

D. Timing Considerations.

ORDINANCES A 
07/14/2025



 If the Council wishes to proceed, the first reading of the ordinance can occur on July 
14, 2025, with adoption at a subsequent meeting.   

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
• Direct staff to proceed with the first reading of the ordinance as drafted; or
• Modify the proposed ordinance and direct staff to return with revisions; or
• Decline to proceed with the amendment.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council proceed with first reading of the ordinance.  

SUGGESTED MOTION   
No motion required, just consensus to proceed with the first reading of the proposed 
ordinance.  

ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment #1 – Ordinance No. 3613 

ORDINANCES A 
07/14/2025



Ordinance No. 3613 - Page 1 of 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 3613    

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2.20.040 OF THE ROSEBURG MUNICIPAL 
CODE  

WHEREAS, The Homeless Commission meets on a different schedule than the standard 
as outlined in Section 2.32.020, and code language should reflect their current schedule. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF ROSEBURG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  

SECTION 1. Roseburg Municipal Code Chapter 2.20.040, titled “Organization of 
Commission,” is hereby amended to read as follows:  

2.20.040 - Organization of Commission.  
The Commission shall consist of eight members, one of whom shall be the Chair.  Five 
members shall be the director or designated representative from the following local 
agencies: Adapt, United Community Action Network (UCAN), Aviva Health, Umpqua 
Health Alliance, and the Cow Creek Band of Umpqua Tribe of Indians.  Two members 
shall be at-large.  

Meetings.  The Homeless Commission shall meet once during each even month starting 
in February of each year, unless their meetings are formally cancelled, and also shall 
meet on the call of the Mayor, the Chair of the Commission, or upon call by a majority of 
the members.  

SECTION 2.  All other sections and subsections of Chapter 2.20 of the Roseburg 
Municipal Code shall remain in full force and effect as written. 

ADOPTED BY THE ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL THIS ____ DAY OF _______, 20__. 

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS ____ DAY OF ___________, 20__. 

_______________________________ 
LARRY RICH, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________________ 
AMY NYTES, CITY RECORDER 

ORDINANCES A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1



ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

DOWNTOWN PARKING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

Meeting Date: July 14, 2025 Agenda Section: Department Items 
Department: Community Development      Staff Contact: Stuart Cowie 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6750 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
On March 10, 2025, Council directed staff to establish a parking committee reflective of 
downtown businesses and stakeholders. The purpose of the committee was to review the 
performance of the downtown and Laurelwood parking program and provide City Council 
with recommendations on how the program could balance the Off-Street Parking Fund. 
Attached to this memo is a copy of their written recommendations. 

BACKGROUND 

A. Council Action History.
On March 22, 2021, the Council received and accepted the Downtown Parking
Assessment and Plan after a presentation from Rick Williams Consulting.

On December 13, 2021, the Council awarded the contract for parking enforcement 
services to ACE Parking.  

On January 24, 2022, the Council authorized a supplemental budget to the Off-Street 
Parking Fund establishing appropriation authority to manage the parking enforcement 
contract for fiscal year 2021-2022.  

On August 22, 2022, the Council authorized the use of ARPA funds to pay for janitorial 
and security services at the parking structure. Council authorized changes to meters, 
parking spaces, time limits and permit sales at meetings on August 22, 2022, September 
26, 2022, and November 11, 2022.  

Council authorized the use of ARPA funds to directly cover the cash flow needs of the 
Off-Street Parking Fund up to $50,000 on seven separate occasions, May 9, 2022, 
September 26, 2022, January 23, 2023, June 12, 2023, November 13, 2023, February 
26, 2024, and June 24, 2024.  

On October 23, 2023, the Council authorized an appropriation transfer of $20,000 from 
the General Fund Contingency to the Off-Street Parking Fund.  

DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
07/14/2025



On November 1, 2023, the Council held a work study session to discuss options for 
funding the downtown parking program.  

On December 6, 2023, the Council held a special meeting to discuss funding options for 
the parking program, and consensus was to establish a Council-led committee to work 
with stakeholders and discuss solutions.  

On April 22, 2024, Council directed staff to review options submitted by ACE Parking, 
whether water meters outside city limits can be assessed a fee, identify groups that could 
be charged a fee, equitable fees based on water meter sizes, and to schedule a work 
session to discuss these options.  

On July 29, 2024, Council held a work study session and directed staff to bring back 
comparison charts for 75/25, 70/30, and 65/35 revenue splits.  

On October 14, 2024, Council directed staff to renew the contract with ACE Parking and 
further evaluate the parameters in which 25% of the Off-Street Parking Fund would be 
paid by downtown property and/or business owners, based upon the proposed 
adjustments and changes ACE presented in order to generate 75% of the funds 
necessary to balance the Off-Street Parking Fund. 

On March 10, 2025, Council authorized the use of $50,000 of the General Fund’s – Other 
Requirements to provide cash flow assistance for the Off-Street Parking Fund. Council 
also directed staff to establish a parking committee that includes staff, downtown 
businesses, and stakeholders, instead of bringing back proposals for the 75/25 revenue 
funding split. 

On March 24, 2025, Council authorized staff to begin advertising for downtown Parking 
Committee applicants. 

On April 14, 2025, Council passed Resolution No. 2025-05, adopting a supplemental 
budget which recognized additional revenues and increased appropriations in the Off-
Street Parking Fund. Additional appropriations increased parking enforcement program 
appropriations and repairs to the elevator in the parking garage. 

From April 28, 2025, through June 23, 2025, Council received a Downtown Parking 
Committee update during Council meetings from Councilor Zack Weiss, who served as 
the Chair of the committee. 

On June 9, 2025, Council authorized the use of $25,000 of the General Fund’s – Other 
Requirements to provide cash flow assistance for the Off-Street Parking Fund. 

B. Analysis.
The purpose of the Downtown Parking Committee was to develop recommendations to
the existing parking program to help balance the Off-Street Parking Fund. The committee
held four meetings over the months of May and June. The committee developed twenty-
two different recommendations for Council to consider (See attachment #1).

DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
07/14/2025



Please note that although the recommendations provided will generate additional 
revenue, there will still be a deficit in balancing the Off-Street Parking Fund. It is projected 
that roughly $59,193 of additional revenue could be produced through implementation of 
the recommendations provided. Rough estimates indicate that the parking program may 
generate a total yearly revenue of $187,320. This is a 46 percent increase from the 
$128,127 produced in 2024. However, it is still only a little more than half of what is 
necessary to cover the entirety of the yearly, $366,928, total expense to operate the 
downtown and Laurelwood parking program. 

The Downtown Parking Committee made it clear they value the need for parking 
enforcement and want to continue with the existing ACE contract. However, they were 
also clear that if there is a gap in balancing the Off-Street Parking Fund, they would rather 
cancel the contract than have downtown businesses or property owners pay the deficit. 
This means Council will need to evaluate how important downtown/Laurelwood parking 
enforcement is to the community, specifically if it means continuing to supplement off-
street parking with General Fund dollars for the long term.  

Many of the recommendations made by the committee stem from existing 
recommendations ACE has provided in order to generate additional revenue. The 
implementation of these recommendations will require significant capital investment into 
the existing parking system (e.g., removal of existing meters, new signs, centralized meter 
kiosks, paid on-street parking, updated striping, etc.). It is anticipated that the costs 
associated with making these improvements will be approximately $125,000. These 
recommendations will also require substantial educational and promotional efforts. Any 
adjustments will have a significant impact on the public perception of the existing parking 
program. Making these investments when uncertainty remains around the way in which 
the entirety of the Off-Street Parking Fund will be balanced creates complexity to this 
issue. Council needs to determine if it values the parking program enough to make 
significant capital investments into the program based upon the recommendations 
provided. It is anticipated that funding for this effort would come from the “General Fund- 
Council Priorities” section of the current-year budget. 

Council should consider each recommendation made by the Committee but must make 
a decision around the more significant issue of how the Off-Street Parking Fund will be 
balanced. Staff recommends evaluating this issue prior to making any decisions involving 
the way in which the existing parking program may be adjusted to generate more revenue. 

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.
Council has authorized cash flow assistance every few months to balance the Off-Street
Parking Fund. The 2025/26 Off-Street Parking Fund includes a transfer of $195,000 from
the General Fund to the Off-Street Parking Fund. This was done in order to eliminate the
need for Council to authorize cash flow assistance over and over again throughout the
year. The Off-Street Parking Fund is an Enterprise Fund. Ideally, Enterprise Funds are
designed to be self-sufficient. Operations are financed and recovered through user
charges. The additional $195,000 in General Fund dollars transferred to the Off-Street
Parking Fund should provide enough cash flow to cover costs for the program through

DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
07/14/2025



the 2025/26 fiscal year, but the continual use of General Fund dollars necessary to 
subsidize the fund will need to be determined by Council. 

D. Timing Considerations.
As the Parking Program continues to operate at a deficit, up to $195,000 of General Fund
money will be used to backfill the fund for fiscal year 2025-26. If this continues into future
budgets, this may impact other General Fund programs. Council needs to determine
whether it will continue to subsidize the Off-Street Parking Fund utilizing General Fund
dollars next fiscal year and long term.

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The Council has the option of directing staff to implement some, none, or all of the Parking 
Committee’s recommendations.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff is seeking direction from Council. 

SUGGESTED MOTION   
No suggested motion. Staff is seeking direction on next steps. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment #1 – Downtown Parking Committee Recommendation 

DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
07/14/2025



Downtown Parking Committee Draft Recommendations 

1. The Committee recommends that City Council maintain the parking enforcement
contract with ACE.

2. The Committee recommends that ACE continue to provide parking enforcement services
Monday-Saturday from 9:00am to 5:00pm, excluding holidays.

3. The Committee recommends that all existing parking meters be removed and that all on-
street parking spaces located within the parking district not marked with a free time limit be
marked to indicate a two-hour free parking limit with the ability to pay for additional time
utilizing scanned pay signs or the ACE mobile parking app. In addition, the Committee
recommends several centralized parking meter kiosks to be placed in the downtown core to
enable those not wanting to use scanned pay signs or app with the ability to pay at a parking
meter kiosk. Downtown on-street spaces marked with a three-hour free time limit should be
changed to reflect a two-hour time limit with the option to pay for additional time utilizing
scanned pay signs or the ACE mobile parking app. Adjusting all time-limited on-street
parking spaces to a two-hour free time limit with the ability to pay for additional time will help 
to increase uniformity.

Rough cost estimates for existing meter removal and new sign installation. 
Cost Est. 

Sign w/existing pole 130 $50 $6,500 
New sign & Pole 92 $250 $23,000 
Remove Meter & Pole 171 $50 $8,550 

$38,050 

A new parking kiosk costs approximately $10,000 with approximate installation costs at 
$2,500 if located strategically near existing power. Costs associated with the installation of 
five parking kiosks within the downtown area would be approximately $62,500. 

4. The Committee recommends a payment of $1.50 per hour to be paid via scanned pay
signs, ACE mobile app or centralized kiosk for those wanting to park beyond the free two-
hour time limit for on-street parking within the downtown parking district.

Data from ACE parking was used to provide rough estimates about how much revenue this 
new model could possibly generate. Utilizing license plate recognition software, ACE was 
able to determine the number of vehicles that parked beyond the two-hour time limit within 
the district both on-street and within the Rose St. parking lot and first floor of the parking 
garage. This data was evaluated over a 3-month time frame. Based on these numbers, it was 
determined that the average net revenue from charging $1.50 an hour, after the two-hour free 

DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Page 1 of 4



time limit, and deducting credit card and transaction fees, would be $1,880 per month. The 
yearly projected revenue is estimated to be $22,560.  

5. The Committee recommends implementation of $50.00 a month on-street parking
permits at the following street locations as recommended by ACE.

• 400 Blk SE Rose St.
• 700 Blk SE Rose St.
• 1000 Blk SE Lane Ave.
• 800 Blk SE Main St.
• 1100 Blk SE Washington Ave.
• 700 Blk SE Pine St.
• 700 Blk SE Kane St.

It is estimated that 20 of these types of permits could possibly be issued per month 
generating $1,000 worth of revenue. Total yearly revenue is estimated to be $12,000 per year. 

6. The Committee recommends installing a new consistent signage package to integrate the
on and o -street parking system. This would mean creating a simple and recognizable “logo” 
intended to communicate public parking. This identifier would then be integrated into all
signage within the City�s on and o -street parking system.

7. The Committee recommends that parking lots with faded striping be re-striped and on-
street parallel parking stalls with faded thermoplastic “L�s” and “T�s” be replaced including
new paint or thermoplastic along curbed areas where parking is restricted. Rough estimates
indicate that it would cost $20,000 to complete this work.

8. The Committee recommends adjusting the cost of o -street parking permits at each of
the City parking lots and parking garage. These parking permit fees should be adjusted by
City Council annually. Permit fees should be set in a tiered system with costs set for the most
desirable parking spaces being at the highest and the least desirable locations being the
lowest.

9. The Committee recommends the following o -street parking permit fee adjustments.
Garage Fl. 1, Oversize - $25 to $35 a month
Garage Fl. 2 - $22 to $30 a month
Garage Fl. 3 - $17 to $25 a month
Armory Lot - $35 to $45 a month
Court Lot - $22 to $30 a month
Rose Lot - $30 to $35 a month
Phillips Lot - $28 to $20 a month
Shalimar Lot - $32 to $20 a month

DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Page 2 of 4



Rough estimates based on the number of permits currently issued for each of these parking 
lots indicate that the fee increases for each parking lot could generate a total of $7,840 per 
month. Total yearly revenue is estimated to be $94,080 per year. 

10. The Committee recommends an increase in residential on-street permits within the
Laurelwood neighborhood of $10 to $70 per school year (180 days). An average of 30 minutes 
of enforcement is provided within Laurelwood per school day. Total operating costs for
enforcement in Laurelwood per school year is $5,342.56. There are currently 77 permits
issued in Laurelwood. The breakeven point for annual permits is $69.38. Currently Roseburg
High School students pay $80 per school year for a parking permit to park on the high school
campus.

11. The Committee does not recommend an increase in citation fees currently. Citation fees
are set by the municipal judge. The Committee recommends the possibility of an increase in
citation fees be evaluated later after an adjustment period to free time-limited parking with
the use of an app to pay for additional time, on-street permitting, and an increase in o -
street permit rates has occurred.

12. The Committee recommends exploring options to generate additional revenue by having
ACE enforce private parking lots.

13. The Committee does not recommend a divestment of the property on which the
underutilized Phillips or Shalimar parking lots are located.

14. The Committee recommends implementing an incentive program for o -street parking
permits. For example:

• One month free through the purchase of a prorated 3-month permit.
• Discount for buying permits for the entirety of the year.
• Continuation of 10% o  for 10 or more permits and 15% o  for 15 or more.
• Discount for purchasing permit within a specific time frame of new parking permit

fees being implemented.

15. The Committee recommends providing additional oversized parking permit spaces to the 
first floor of the parking garage. Currently there are only four oversized parking spaces.

16. The Committee recommends adjusting the 4-hour free parking on the first floor of the
parking garage and within the Rose St. lot to become 2-hour free parking with the ability to
pay $1.50 per hour for additional time utilizing scanned pay signs within the parking area, the
ACE mobile app, or nearby parking meter kiosk.

17. The Committee recommends adding motorcycle spaces to the downtown area on SE
Jackson St. and SE Main St.

DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Page 3 of 4



18. The Committee recommends creating a social media campaign used to educate the
public and promote the new parking program. The campaign should emphasize
improvements to the parking garage including cleanliness and safety.

19. The Committee recommends that businesses and/or property owners within the
downtown parking district not be required to pay any remaining deficit necessary to balance
the O -Street Parking Fund. The Committee desires to continue utilizing money from the
General Fund – Other Requirements to provide cash flow assistance until it is determined
how much of a deficit may remain once changes are made to increase parking revenue. The
Committee recommends that the ACE contract be cancelled, and no parking enforcement
occur if businesses or property owners within the downtown parking district are required to
pay for the balance of the remaining expenses of the O -Street Fund.

20. The Committee recommends that parking meters removed from the parking district
should be donated, sold or provided to others for future reuse.

21. The Committee recommends meeting every other month while the new parking program
is being implemented in order to evaluate and assess progress being made.

22. The Committee recommends that once operational after a 6-month period a re-
assessment of the program should occur to evaluate revenue and expenses to determine
the state of the O -Street Parking Fund.

DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Page 4 of 4



ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

OPTIONS FOR ALLOWING DISTRIBUTION OF INJECTABLE OVERDOSE 
REVERSAL KITS ON CITY PROPERTY 

Meeting Date:  July 14, 2025 Agenda Section: Department Items 
Department: Administration      Staff Contact: Nikki Messenger 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6866 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
At the June 23, 2025, meeting, Council directed staff to bring back information for allowing 
distribution of injectable overdose reversal medication kits on city property.   

BACKGROUND 

A. Council Action History.
• On April 21, 2025, the Council held a work study session regarding homeless

issues. Staff introduced the concept of prohibiting needle distribution or exchange
on public property. Council indicated they wanted staff to draft an ordinance for
their consideration.

• On June 9, 2025, the Council adopted Ordinance No. 3610, which added a
prohibition on distribution of hypodermic needles on city property to the Roseburg
Municipal Code.

• On June 23, 2025, Council directed staff to bring back information on options for
allowing distribution of injectable overdose reversal kits on city property.

B. Analysis.
The intent of prohibiting needle distribution or exchange on city-owned public property
was to reduce the number of needles being used and discarded in public spaces.
Discarded needles are one of citizens’ leading concerns regarding unhoused occupying
parks and public spaces.

Naloxone is an opioid overdose reversal drug that can be administered in two different 
ways.  It can be injected into the muscle, using an intramuscular needle.  This is a larger 
needle than one typically used to deliver drugs, which are taken intravenously. Naloxone 
can also be delivered through a nasal spray, usually referred to by the brand name 
Narcan.  

According to testimony provided previously by Dane Zahner from HIV Alliance, many I.V. 
drug users prefer to administer naloxone by needle. Chief Klopfenstein indicated this 
method may allow the recipient to ”feather the dose” to avoid the withdrawal symptoms 
associated with naloxone.  The nasal delivery does not allow this and often makes the 

DEPARTMENT ITEMS B 
07/14/2025



person who needed the overdose reversal sick with withdrawal symptoms. The current 
ordinance does not prohibit possession of any of these materials; it prohibits distribution 
of hypodermic needles on city property.    

Staff researched the availability of Naloxone within the community and found the 
following information: 

• Naloxone access is explicitly listed among services (alongside hygiene kits, food,
and substance use service connections) via Connecting Point flyer. Locations and
times:

o Roseburg Dream Center – Mondays, 10:00 AM to 12:00 PM

o Seventh Day Adventist Church, Roseburg – Tuesdays, 10:00 AM to 12:00 PM

o Adapt South River Clinic, Winston – Wednesdays, 12:00 PM to 3:00 PM
(1st/3rd/5th)

o Opioid Treatment Center, Roseburg – Thursdays, 10:00 AM to 12:00 PM

o Hastings Village, Sutherlin – Fridays, 10:00 AM to 12:00 PM

o Harvest Christian Assembly, Myrtle Creek – 2nd Wednesdays, 9:00 AM to
12:00 PM

o Living Hope Outreach, Drain – 4th Wednesdays, 12:00 PM to 2:30 PM

• Over the Counter @ Pharmacy (contacted Walgreens on NE Stephens St)
o $49.99 for two doses – Name Brand
o $39.99 for two doses – Walgreens Brand
o Injectable available only with prescription and costs vary based on

insurance and dosage

• Wellpath – Douglas County Jail
o Nasal Spray Only - Naloxone/Narcan

• Adapt Treatment Center (provided for patients only)
o Narcan “Vending Machine” for free access in lobby

Collaborating Agencies 
• HIV Alliance, ADAPT, Umpqua Health Alliance among others train on naloxone

use, co-locate with health and harm reduction services, and coordinate
distribution efforts.

• UCAN (Gary Leif Navigation Center) has an outreach team that also makes
naloxone/narcan available and they work closely with HIV Alliance.

The following are potential options for allowing distribution of overdose reversing 
naloxone kits with needles on city-owned property. 

DEPARTMENT ITEMS B 
07/14/2025



1. Identify a location and modify the ordinance to except that location or locations.

2. Modify the ordinance to allow for and enact a permitting process.  Staff would
need direction from Council on the following:

a. What locations may be appropriate for permitting distribution?
b. Is there a limit to the number of kits that can be distributed at each event?
c. How often could distribution events occur?
d. Would the permittee be required to provide insurance with the City as

additional insured (same as other event permit holders)?
e. Is there a cost for the permit?
f. Is there an appeal process if a permit application is denied?

3. If the Council only wants to allow distribution of the nasal version of naloxone, the
existing ordinance does not prevent that. No additional action is needed for this
option.

If Council recommends allowing locations (with or without a permit) within the
parks system, it would be appropriate for that item to be considered by the Parks
Commission before coming back to the Council for adoption.

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.
If a permitting process is enacted, staff time will be needed to create and administer the
program.

D. Timing Considerations.
There are no timing considerations.

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The Council has the following options: 

1. Provide staff direction regarding changes to the ordinance related to allowing
distribution of injectable overdose reversal kits on city property; or

2. Do nothing, which allows the continued distribution of the nasal form of overdose
reversal medications.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Given that injectable overdose reversal kits are currently available at HIV Alliance, 
Connecting Point and other locations, and that the City does not prohibit distribution of 
the nasal delivery form of overdose reversal medications, and the level of heightened 
public concern surrounding needles in public spaces, staff recommends making no 
changes at this time.   

SUGGESTED MOTION   
Staff is seeking direction from Council at this time.   

ATTACHMENTS:  
None. 

DEPARTMENT ITEMS B 
07/14/2025



1 

TENTATIVE FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA 

Unscheduled 
• Council Goals Adoption
• Five Year Capital Improvement Plan Update
• City Manager Evaluation Process Presentation (Work Study)
• City Manager Evaluation Process Adoption
• UCC Land Transfer
• Thrive Smoking/Vaping Presentation
• Tent Camping Rules Discussion from April Work Session
• ORS192.660(2)(i) – City Manager Report / Evaluation (executive session)
• Solid Waste Management License Fee

July 28, 2025 
Mayor Reports 
Special Presentation 
A. Southern Oregon Medical Workforce Center Update – Randy Hubbard
Consent Agenda
A. July 14, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Ordinance
A. RMC 2.20 Amendment – Homeless Commission (2nd Reading)
Department Items
A. Pine Street Water Main Replacement – Bid Award
B. Fir Grove Sports Field Turf Project – Approval to Fund Raise
C. Parks CIP
Executive Session ORS 192.660(2)(i)
A. City Manager Report / Evaluation
Informational
A. Future Tentative Council Agendas
B. Municipal Court Quarterly Report
August 11, 2025 – 6:00 p.m. 
Anvil NW Presentation 
August 11, 2025  
Mayor Reports 
Consent Agenda 
A. July 28, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Public Hearing
A. Purchase of Fire Pumper Engine
Informational
A. Future Tentative Council Agendas
August 25, 2025 
Mayor Reports 
Consent Agenda 
A. August 11, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Department Items
A. Airport Fencing and Security Upgrades – Bid Award
Informational
A. Future Tentative Council Agendas
B. Finance Quarterly Report
September 8, 2025 

INFORMATIONAL A 
07/14/2025



2 

Mayor Reports 
Consent Agenda 
A. August 25, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Department Items
A. Fireworks Risk Assessment
Informational
A. Future Tentative Council Agendas
September 22, 2025 
Mayor Reports 
Consent Agenda 
A. September 8, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Department Items
A. Water System Master Plan Contract Award
Informational
A. Future Tentative Council Agendas
October 13, 2025 
Mayor Reports 
Consent Agenda 
A. September 22, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Department Items 
A. 2025 Oregon Library Statistical Report
Informational
A. Future Tentative Council Agendas
October 27, 2025 
Mayor Reports 
Consent Agenda 
A. October 13, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Informational
A. Future Tentative Council Agendas
November 10, 2025 
Mayor Reports 
Consent Agenda 
A. October 27, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Executive Session 
A. ORS192.660(2)(i) – Municipal Court Judge Evaluation
Informational 
A. Future Tentative Council Agendas
B. Municipal Court Quarterly Report
C. Finance Quarterly Report
December 8, 2025 
Mayor Reports 
Consent Agenda 
A. November 10, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Informational 
A. Future Tentative Council Agendas

INFORMATIONAL A 
07/14/2025


	- 07-14 -2025 Agenda
	060A - 06-23-2025 Council Special Meeting Minutes
	060B - 06-23-2025 City Council Meeting Minutes
	060C - AIS - OLCC - New Outlet - T&K Christners Enterprises Inc dba Shazaams 1 located at 2421 W. Harvard Ave
	060C1 - Attachment No. 1 - OLCC - New Outlet - T&K Christners Enterprises Inc dba Shazaams 1 located at 2421 W. Harvard Ave.
	060D - AIS - OLCC – New Outlet – Mesa5 Inc dba Umpqua Valley Liquor Outlet located at 1350 NE Stephens St
	060D1 - Attachment No. 1 - OLCC – New Outlet – Mesa5 Inc dba Umpqua Valley Liquor Outlet located at 1350 NE Stephens St. #26
	070A - AIS - Community Development Block Grant Regional Housing Rehabilitation Project
	070A1 - Attachment No. 1 - Legal Notice
	070A2 - Attachment No. 2 - Resolution 2025-11
	070B - AIS - RMC Section 12.04.090 Proposed Floodplain Overlay Text Amendments File No. LUDR-25-001
	070B1 - Attachment No. 1 - Planning Commission Findings of Fact and Order File No. LUDR-25-001
	070B2 - Attachment No. 2 - Proposed Floodplain Amendments
	080A - AIS - Ordinance No. 3613 - Amending Chapter 2.20 of the Roseburg Municipal Code, First Reading
	080A1 - Attachment No. 1 - Ordinance No. 3613
	090A - AIS - Dowtown Parking Committee Recommendations
	090A1 - Downtown Parking Committee Recommendation
	090B - AIS - Options for Allowing Distribution of Injectable Overdose Reversal Kits on City Property
	Informational A - Future Tentative Council Agendas



